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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEhEEBEERASEN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Lam Kim Phung, aged 82, is the wife of Mr. Eav Yin who
was the former chairman of the Board, an Executive Director, the
former chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company before he passed away
in September 2020. She was appointed as a non-executive Director,
the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company on 30th June 2022 and re-designated
from a non-executive Director to an Executive Director on 24th March
2023. Ms. Lam is a Cambodian Chinese and has extensive experience
in watch retailing in Cambodia, Hong Kong and mainland China. She
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in June 1989,
overseeing the purchasing function of the Group before she resigned
to pursue her own career in August 1996. Ms. Lam is the mother of
Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna and Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan, both of
whom are Executive Directors of the Company. She is also a controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan (former name was Mr. Eav Ming
Keong, Kinson), aged 50, holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Interior
Design and Technology and a Master of Arts degree in Art, Design
and Visual Culture from the London Guildhall University. After
graduation, he practiced in an architecture firm in London for 2 years.
He was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 22nd
November 2006 and acted as a director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company before his resignation from the Board of Directors
on 21st August 2015 as he wanted to devote more time for his
personal business at that time. Mr. Eav remained as a consultant
of the Company and its subsidiaries since 21st August 2015. He
was appointed as a director of three subsidiaries of the Company in
February, April and May 2018, respectively and he was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 11th October 2018. In addition,
he is currently acting as a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Eav is the brother of Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna, who is an
Executive Director of the Company, and the son of Ms. Lam Kim Phung
who is a controlling shareholder, Executive Director and Chairman of
the Board of the Company.

Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna (former names were Eav Xin Qi, Rosanna
and Eav Guech Rosanna), aged 55, holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration Degree in Marketing from Adelphi University in the
U.S.A. She is currently the chief executive officer of Time City (Hong
Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. Before joining the Group
in 1993, she worked in a major international US Bank specializing in
local corporate companies. She is currently acting as a director of
a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Eav is the sister of
Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan, who is an Executive Director of the
Company, and the daughter of Ms. Lam Kim Phung who is a controlling
shareholder, Executive Director and Chairman of the Board of the
Company. She was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
on 21st August 2015.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Si Ming, aged 67, is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors and an associate member of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 8th August 1998. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Lai was
elected as the Vice Chairman, General Practice Division of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors during the years from 2001 to 2003. Mr.
Lai has been practicing as a professional surveyor since 1983 and
has considerable experience in the property field. Mr. Lai was an
independent non-executive director of Glory Health Industry Limited
(Stock Code: 2329), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, from July 2013 to August
2023. Mr. Lai holds a Master Degree of Business Administration from
Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent, aged 55, has around 30 years’
experience in accounting and auditing and is the sole proprietor of
a firm of Certified Public Accountants practicing in Hong Kong. Mr.
Lee is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He holds a Master Degree in Corporate Finance
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 16th December
2006. He is the chairman of the remuneration committee and also a
member of the audit committee and the nomination committee of the
Company.

Mr. Kee Wah Sze, aged 77, is a partner of Messrs. Michael Cheuk,
Wong & Kee and is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong for over 40 years
specialized in both commercial and conveyancing fields. He is a Notary
Public of Hong Kong, a China Appointed Attesting Officer and holder
of Master Degree in Chinese and Comparative Law of City University
of Hong Kong and Master Degree in Law of the People’s University of
the PRC. He was an independent non-executive director of Shougang
Fushan Resources Group Limited (Stock Code: 639), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, from April 1997 to June 2021.

Mr. Kee was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 10th August 2020. He is also a member of the nomination
committee, the audit committee and the remuneration committee of the
Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheng Ka Chung, aged 57, joined the Group in 2010. Mr. Cheng
has around 30 years experience in finance and accounting. He holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy and a Master of Science
degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Cheng is the Finance Director and Company Secretary of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Business Review

The Group’s revenue for the year amounted to HK$709 million which
was comparable to HK$705 million in last year. The sales in Mainland
China this year amounted to HK$696 million which were comparable to
HK$693 million in last year. The “Sales of watches” segment continued
to play a key role this year and achieved a total revenue of HK$699
million. On the other hand, the business in the “Property leasing”
segment derived a total revenue of HK$9 million this year, representing
an increase of 13% as compared with HK$8 million in last year due to
the commencement of a new tenancy for the investment property in
late last year.
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For the year ended 31st March 2025, the Group’s revenue amounted to
HK$709 million which was comparable to HK$705 million in last year.
Gross profit margin was 33% which was the same as last year.

Distribution costs this year amounted to HK$99 million which was
comparable to HK$100 million in last year.

Administrative expenses increased by 13% this year to HK$35 million
as compared with HK$31 million in last year which was mainly due to
the increase in director’s remuneration.

Fair value losses on investment properties amounted to HK$37 million
this year as compared with fair value losses of HK$32 million in last
year as there was a downturn in both the property markets in Hong
Kong and London, and in particular the Hong Kong market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance costs amounted to HK$9 million this year which was 18%
lower than the last year’s amount of HK$11 million as there was a
decrease in bank borrowings.

Other net gains amounting to HK$8 million this year as compared with
net losses of approximately HK$0.2 million in last year was mainly due
to government subsidies received in this year.

As a result of the above, the Group achieved a net profit of HK$24
million this year as compared with a net profit of HK$26 million in last
year.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31st March 2025, the Group’s total cash balance amounted
to HK$179 million (31st March 2024: HK$165 million). The increase
was mainly due to the increase in cashflow from operations which
was partially offset by the repayments of bank loans and payment
of dividend during the year. Bank loans amounted to HK$134 million
as of 31st March 2025 (HK$159 million as of 31st March 2024). The
bank loans were secured by (i) pledged of investment properties of
HK$289 million; (ii) corporate guarantees given by the Company; (iii)
subordination of the payables to the group companies owned by a
subsidiary of the Company as the loan borrower and (iv) assignment of
rental income from certain investment properties.

Gearing ratio of the Group, expressed as a ratio of total bank
borrowings over total equity, was 30% as at 31st March 2025 (31st
March 2024: 36%).

Foreign exchange risks
The Group views its main currencies as Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi,
Pound Sterling and Swiss Francs.

The Group monitors its exposure to foreign exchange risks and, when
it considers necessary and appropriate, will hedge its foreign exchange
risks by using financial instruments.

Prospect

The Group currently operates 5 stores in Mainland China. The Group
remained focus on its core stores and has streamlined their operating
costs during the year and will continue to do so with a view to further
enhance the cost efficiency of each store. Though our sales in Mainland
China were stable this year, the slowing economy in Mainland China is
still a challenge for the luxury retail business looking ahead.

Apart from the “Sales of watches” segment which continues to be the
core business of the Group, the Group is also developing its business
in the “Property leasing” segment and acquired two residential
properties in London in previous years in addition to the key investment
properties located in Hong Kong.

The Group will continue to improve its business and take a cautious
approach in its future expansion.

On behalf of the Group, we sincerely thank for the kind and positive
support of our shareholders, customers, suppliers and associates.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEBRS

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 16 to the
financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the
financial year are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2025 and the
state of the Company and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 52 to 54.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2025
is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 9 to 11.

Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be
facing can be found in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 9 to 11 of this annual report and Note 29 to the
financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year using financial key performance indicators is set out in section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 11 of
this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars of the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 27 to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.02677 per share for the year ended 31st March 2025 (2024:
HK$0.0348) to the shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 5th September 2025. Subject to the
approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
the final dividend is expected to be paid on 16th September 2025.

Details of the dividends are set out in Note 12 to the financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 16 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in Note 14 to the financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties during the year are
set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of reserves available for distribution to shareholders and
movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in Note 28 to the financial statements and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

BORROWING

Details of the bank borrowings are set out in Note 25 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31st March 2025, the Group’s largest supplier
contributed approximately 96% of the total purchases for the year and
the aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s top
five suppliers represented approximately 100% of the Group’s total
purchases.

Since the customer base of the Group is very wide, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers are approximately
0.4% of total sales during the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owning more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five financial years is set
out on page 155.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, subject to the statues, every
Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/
her office. The Company has taken out insurance against the liability
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against Directors of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS EEREEZRESHY

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this FARBERABRERIL  ARTESR -
report were:

Executive Directors: HiTES:

Ms. Lam Kim Phung (Chairman) mEB &L (£E)

Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan 158 68 5% 4

Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna BELZT

Independent non-executive Directors: BWIAIEHMITES :

Mr. Lai Si Ming 78R

Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TEMSLE

Mr. Kee Wah Sze MoEL AL

Pursuant to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company, Mr. Lai Si BIEAATATIAE > AT BB E9(E - 38 B AE 5 4

Ming and Mr. Kee Wah Sze shall retire by rotation from office at the PHELTREEAREERRERBFTRS LnFEER - #
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and shall be eligible and offer BEFEERMEEBEEET -
themselves for re-election.

Ms. Lam Kim Phung will voluntarily retire from her directorship at the MEeERLZLIEREERREFAE EFEEREIT  ITH
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and shall be eligible and offer BIgEEET -
herself for re-election.

The independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by WBEARNTIHAEA - B IEHRITESBRERT
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract SN ERAEEET CESHARNRNENE A RY
with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the FEAI M AEEER —FRBZ K IEBEELREE
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than CEEBERIN ZRIEA L -

statutory compensation.

0

SHe

FE

i

EEEHARAE

14| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March 2025, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be and were recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix C3 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EE8RS

EFRTBITRASKRIRM - i8RRMNREZES D
Zigm

REZZ-_RF=A=+—HB ARAEERFETH
ABEARRHEEFMBAREER (EXA(EFRHE
)y (& 5 R BB R0 1) EXVER) 89 in - BRI
SEHFETEE  MRIEEF LB R EXVEET R
F8NEABMA RN MR FAME R MOAR (BIEIR
BREFMAEGRIZZERXREREFEIER/ER
ZiEEmRRR) - RIBEES R E &P E352(F R E
AIAMEBIMNARTHEEFZERMIEBETEMAR
ZRAERRABZES EMRR (T EmRR) MECImE
ZLEWETAEZETRS X ZHOREST A ([RLET
Al EBAMARA LB gD LOARIDT

REh2ASRMDREBERRDCERE

Number of Approximate

ordinary percentage of

shares of aggregate

HK$0.2 each/ interests to

underlying total issued

shares held share capital

BESR RERLERT

Name of Directors Nature of interest 0.2 TEER BB
EEpnE EEMtE HEROEE BMAOBESH
%

Ms. Lam Kim Phung ma B+ Note 1 Fff#E1 446,949,400 59.82
Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna HmEZ LT Note 2 fff 72 2,087,472 0.28
Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan #5884 5E & Note 3 [ff 53 707,400 0.09

Note 1: Among the 446,949,400 shares in which Ms. Lam Kim Phung is deemed
to have interests under the SFO (i) 43,072,400 shares are personal
interest of Ms. Lam Kim Phung, (ii) 344,700,200 shares are corporate
interest through Ms. Lam Kim Phung’s controlled corporations, and (jii)
59,176,800 shares represent the interest held by Ms. Lam Kim Phung,
as the administrator/executor of the estate of Mr. Eav Yin through
Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation (as a trustee of Eav An Unit
Trust). Eav An Unit Trust is a discretionary trust of which Mr. Eav Yin is
the founder, the beneficiaries include Ms. Lam Kim Phung who is the
administrator/executor of the estate of Mr. Eav Yin and her children.

Among the 344,700,200 shares shown in (ii) above, (a) 291,210,668
shares are held by Century Hero International Limited, (b) 51,133,864
shares are held by Goodideal Industrial Limited and (c) 1,423,268 shares
are held by Goodness Management Limited and (d) 932,400 shares
held by Debonair Company Limited. Century Hero International Limited,
Goodness Management Limited and Debonair Company Limited are
wholly owned and Goodideal Industrial Limited which is 87% owned by
Ms. Lam Kim Phung.
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SRLZ T2 ZERERZ A R#E ¢ K(i)59,176,800
BRHIEERER LT ABCAEEEZBEETE
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Corporation ({£4Eav An Unit TrustZ 5T A) #52
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R & SC(ii)FT at 89344,700,2000 B 5 & & -
(a)291,210,668% % 7 Mt 4 B X B R 2 7 #%
A i (b)51,133,864% % 5 FAGoodideal Industrial
Limited#§ A ; Jx(c)1,423,2680% I 1) HGoodness
Management Limited¥ & i LA [2(d)932,4004% % {5
FfiDebonair Company Limited$$ % o tt i B BE A R
‘A B) * Goodness Management Limited 2 Debonair
Company Limitedi & B L +2&E%HHF - M
Goodideal Industrial Limited B & Bl 22 -1 H587% °
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Note 2: All the 2,087,472 shares are personal interest of Ms. Eav Guech
Rosanna.

Note 3: All the 707,400 shares are personal interest of Mr. Eav Feng Ming,
Jonathan.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31st March 2025, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required to
be recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

In addition, save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years
of age had been granted or had exercised any rights to subscribe for
any equity or debt securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Sub-Tenancy Agreement

On 15th November 2019, the Company as a principal tenant entered into
the Sub-Tenancy Agreement | with Honour Rich International Limited
(“Honour Rich”) (a connected person) as a sub-tenant, under which
the Company agreed to grant a tenancy of 3901-02, 39/F, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong (“Hopewell
property”) to Honour Rich for a term of 26.5 months at a monthly
rental of HK$359,706. This sub-tenancy agreement was renewed on
28th January 2022 for a term of 24 months at a monthly rental of
HK$163,713. Details are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 18th November 2019 and 28th January 2022 respectively.

The Hopewell property will be rented by the Company and leased to
Honour Rich for the use as office.

Honour Rich is a company owned by Ms. Lam Kim Phung, who is
the controlling shareholder and Executive Director of the Company,
the wife of Mr. Eav Yin (the former Chairman and Executive Director
of the Company who has passed away on 4th September 2020) and
the mother of Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna (an Executive Director of the
Company) and Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan (an Executive Director
of the Company), and hence are connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the tenancy under the Sub-
Tenancy Agreement | constitutes connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A.

Save for the information disclosed above, during the year, the Company
did not enter into any other transactions which constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions that were subject to
reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors have confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from (as the case may be)

independent third parties; and

(c) on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, auditors of the
Company, have confirmed to the Company regarding the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above that nothing has come to the
auditors’ attention that causes them to believe that:

1. the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Company’s board of directors;

2. the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the terms governing such transactions; and

3. have exceeded the cap:

The Company confirmed that it has disclosed the continuing connected
transactions and the details of the continuing connected transactions
mentioned above pursuant to the disclosure requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the year ended 31st March 2025, which may also constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in Note 30 to the
financial statements.

For those related party transactions that constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions (as the case may
be) under the Listing Rules but are not disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions”, they are exempt from reporting,
annual review and independent shareholder’s approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed herein the section headed “RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS”, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which a Director of the
Company or his connected entities had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year, was the Company
or any of its associated corporations a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the Directors or their spouses or children under 18 years of
age was granted any right to subscribe for any shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any of its associated corporations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no Director is considered
to have interests in the businesses which compete or are likely to
compete with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR
RIGHTS

The shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of a share
award plan (the “Share Award Plan 2010”) on 13th September 2010 but
the Share Award Plan 2010 was already expired on 13th September
2020 and no award was granted before and hence there was no
outstanding award as at 31st March 2025.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31st March 2025, so far as is known to any Directors and chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, being
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital, which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
the Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by
the Company or required to be notified under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

ETEIRRZIEDS

RZZ-_RAF=ZA=+—B BEALARIFAEERE
ETBABMM > TIAL(ARBEEREIETHA
BRI RART 2B RAERBRO P EEARFE #
TTRARB% S E % 12 IR E 75 LB G0 EXVEEFE2 5
BN WZEXARMARFWE » R BERARFFAFE
ZEMRIREZ R EGIIFEIB6HATHE 24
HIORA

RARASRMBREMREARRB TR

Number of
ordinary shares

and underlying Approximate

shares (if any) percentage

Capacity of HK$0.2 of issued

Name of shareholders (Notes) Notes each held share capital

BEER2BTZ

g7 EERKEAMR HEBTRE

KRR B (Bt =) Bt 5 KRG (W0E) 288 BHBESLH

%

Century Hero International Limited it B H R A A 5 1 291,210,668 38.98

Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Chanchhaya Trustee Holding

Corporation Corporation 6 2 59,176,800 7.92

Goodideal Industrial Limited Goodideal Industrial Limited S 3 51,133,864 6.84

Covenhills Limited Covenhills Limited 5 4 64,255,243 8.60
Notes: Het -

1. Century Hero International Limited is wholly owned by Ms. Lam Kim Phung 1. HHEFERERATAMNESB L T2 EHE  MeB L+

who is a director of this company.

2. Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation is the trustee of Eav An Unit
Trust, a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lam Kim
Phung who is the administrator/executor of the estate of Mr. Eav Yin and
her children.

3. Goodideal Industrial Limited is 87% owned by Ms. Lam Kim Phung who is a
director of this company.

4. Covenhills Limited is owned equally by the estate beneficiary of late Mr.
Leong Lou Teck, Mr. Leong Lum Thye, Miss Leong Yoke Kheng and Mr.
Leong Siew Khuen.

5. Beneficial owner.

6. Trustee.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in shares
and underlying shares of the Company. Save as disclosed above, as at
31st March 2025, there was no other person (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) who was recorded in the register
of the Company as having an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2025, there were no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company as having an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws although there is no restriction against such right under
Bermuda law.

DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There were 114 employees in the Group as at 31st March 2025. The
Group offers competitive remuneration packages to employees in line
with market trends with incentive such as discretionary bonus.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules.

Environmental policies

The Group puts great emphasis on environmental protection and
sustainable development. The conscientious use of resources and the
adoption of best practices across the Group’s businesses underlie its
commitment to safeguarding the environment. The Group encourages
environmental protection, complies with environmental legislations
and promotes awareness towards environmental protection to its
employees. Several measures have been implemented by the Group in
order to promote environmental protection, including, among others:

(i) promoting energy saving by encouraging its staff to switch off
all air-conditioners and lightings before leaving the office, and to
utilise the timer-control function of all air-conditioning systems;

(i)  reducing energy consumption by using energy-saving light bulbs
in the corridors and the reception area of its offices;

(iii) promoting recycling by placing recycle bins next to printers for

collecting used papers for reusing and recycling purposes, and by
encouraging two-sided printing and/or the use of scratch papers;
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(iv) reducing the use of disposable products by, for example,
cancelling the distribution of plastic bags in office; and

(v) reducing water consumption by replacing all water taps by
automatic faucets in offices.

The environmental, social and governance report is set out on pages 38
to 45 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises employees as one of the valuable assets
of the Group and the Group strictly complies with the labour laws
and regulations in Hong Kong and China and regularly reviews the
existing staff benefits for improvement. The Group provides good
quality services to the customers and maintains a good relationship
with them. The Group is able to establish trusting and long-standing
business relationships with the major customers. The Group also
maintains effective communication and develops long-term and stable
relationships with its suppliers. During the year, there was no material
dispute or disagreement between the Group and its customers or
suppliers.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year ended 31st March 2025 and up to the date of
this report, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in China, Switzerland and Hong Kong that have a significant
impact on the Group.

Donations
During the year, the Group made some charitable donations.
Dividend Policy

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and the Memorandum of
Association and Bye-Laws of the Company, dividends may be paid out
of the profits of the Company, or subject to solvency of the Company,
out of sums standing to the credit of the share premium account
of the Company. However, no dividend shall exceed the amount
recommended by Directors of the Company.
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Declaration and recommendation of payment of dividends of the
Company is subject to the approval of the Directors of the Company,
depending on results of operations, working capital, financial position,
future prospects, and capital requirements, as well as any other factors
which the Directors of the Company may consider relevant from
time to time. Any future declaration, recommendation and payment
of dividends of the Company may or may not reflect the historical
declarations and payments of dividends and will be at the absolute
discretion of the Directors of the Company. The Company does not
have any predetermined dividend payout ratio.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March
2025 have been audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited, who will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

EXPRESSION OF GRATITUDE

The Board would like to take this opportunity to express its gratitude
to all staff members, shareholders, bankers, customers, suppliers and

professional advisors for the sincere support to the Group.

By Order of the Board

Eav Guech Rosanna
Director

Hong Kong, 26th June 2025

HEH72024/2025

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EE8RS

ARFERSEZRMNRBAGFEELE  WARTE
BEE 2EES  MBHR KEFSRRERZL
URBETHZENEMNEMCERME - ARBRR
Ek ZRRNFRNEMES  ATEGHAELE
REBEEMEIRLKMNES  UHEZ2RBBER
E o RARDRAEMEREIREE -

1% 1 6

BE_Z-AF=A=+T-RIFEZEAMBBRER
HEEEE@EB)EANEEMARARETER
EENARBEERRBFAREG LRE - EAERY
FRE BEEE -

Bt
EEQERBUBERMBEET KRR FRET T

FHERAEEREMA B AREAREER 2 B8
BPAORED 2 R -

EEFEH
BE
BF

B ZE-_RAFAAZ+RA

Annual Report 2024/2025 |23



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PREIBWS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices by emphasising a quality board of directors,
sound internal control, transparency and accountability to all the
shareholders of the Company.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix C1
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited throughout the year ended
31st March 2025 except for the deviation from the Code Provision
C.3.3 and those discussed below:

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted by private
act, the Asia Commercial Holdings Limited Company Act, 1989 of
Bermuda (the “1989 Act”). Pursuant to section 3(e) of the 1989 Act,
director holding office as executive chairman or managing director shall
not be subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting
as provided in the Bye-Laws.

As the Company is bound by the provision of the 1989 Act, at this
time, the Bye-Laws cannot be amended to fully reflect the requirements
of the Code. As such, a special resolution was passed at the special
general meeting held on 28th March 2007 to amend the Bye-Laws of
the Company so that, inter alia, (i) every director (save for a director
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director) of the Company shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years; (ii)
a director may be removed by an ordinary resolution in general meeting
instead of a special resolution; (iii) any director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional director shall hold office until
the next following general meeting, instead of the next annual general
meeting.

To enhance good corporate governance practices, the Chairman of the
Board will voluntarily retire as director at annual general meeting of the
Company at least once every three years in order for the Company to
comply with the Code, provided that being eligible for re-election at the
annual general meeting.

24| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

EEEGCEN

ARAHNEBBEENEER  HANRBEEY
ARAZBREZEARE RAR MR BT 0%

EOREM -

RBE-Z-RAF="A=+t—HLEFER AQFALC
BFEEMARSMBRARES EMARA T EHR
A1) PFERCI 2 Eoa s A ([ <7 B )) PRt m An & <7 B i
X0 T XAl s R SCE CL3.316 2 R Bl RS

AARRAREEIMALMEBCEEEEEBRER
AZAANER  BEE-NNNFRRER( NN
FER]D - BE-NANNFERFE3GK - EERTE
FREZREENESHARBRAF@NES AR
BERE EWERET -

HRARRR —NWNAFERZBGEXHR - B EE
EETARIAA - AR RIRFAIZHE - HUlt - ARE
REBZLF=A T ABRTZRRENARE LB
BIERRRZREFTARF 2 ARME - i< (K
RERE)  ((BRARAEE(TEREEIRIES
BEB7ER)RIB=FHERT IR ()TRKRER
ABLELBREEMERIRAERRRES  (ii)E
EER LB HEREZRIEFAESENERENE
= AHBEET EERRREAL MIET—ER
RBFXE -

REFRIFEEERESR EFESERHERRIET=
F-RRARBRZERBFAEG LRBTAZHRER
TEZRG  ETEERRRRBEAS LEREMT -

jit o P S SR B A R A )



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Code Provision C.3.3 stipulates that directors should clearly
understand delegation arrangements in place. The Company should
have formal letters of appointment for directors setting out the
key terms and conditions of their appointments. Except for the
appointments of Mr. Kee Wah Sze as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company in August 2020 and the appointment of Ms.
Lam Kim Phung as a non-executive Director of the Company, the
Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the Nomination Committee
of the Company in June 2022, and her redesignation as an Executive
Director of the Company in March 2023, the Company has not entered
into any written letters of appointment with its Directors.

However, the Board recognises that (i) the Directors have already
been subject to the laws and regulations applicable to directors of
a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
including the Listing Rules as well as the fiduciary duties to act in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders; (ii) all of them are
well established in their professions and (iii) the current arrangement
has been adopted by the Company for several years and has proven to
be effective. Therefore, the Board considers that the Directors are able
to carry out their duties in a responsible and effective manner under the
current arrangement.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure that
business activities and decision making processes are regulated in a
proper and prudent manner.

Compliance of the Model Code for Securities Transaction by
Directors of Listed Issuers

All Directors have confirmed that they complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules throughout the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors of the Company, all
of them confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code and the Code of Conduct during the year
ended 31st March 2025.
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PREIBWS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s business, strategic decisions and financial
performance. The management of the Group is responsible for the
day-to-day management and operation of the respective individual
business unit.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The biographical details of the
Directors are set out on pages 4 and 5 of this annual report.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The
opinions raised by the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company in the Board meetings facilitate the maintenance of good
corporate governance practices. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional accounting experience and
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. A balanced
composition of Executive and non-executive Directors also generates a
strong independent element on the Board, which allows independent and
objective decision making process for the best interests of the Company.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all of them to be
independent.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group. During the year, 5 regular Board meetings
were held. Moreover, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 1 Remuneration
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Committee meeting and 1 Nomination Committee meeting were REZLEBEees KREFNzEeaz s LEFELETIER
held during the year. The individual attendance of Directors in these o
meetings was set out below:
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Directors meetings meetings meeting meeting
EEps Exges EnZE9e3 FHzEseg REZEEY
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Lam Kim Phung mweRzt 4/4 N/AT i F N/AT 3 11
Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan ol-370 4 4/4 N/AT i F N/AT i N/AT 3
Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna HBEZL 4/4 N/AT i3 A N/AT 38 A N/ATT 38 A
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

Directors

Mr. Lai Si Ming BEALAE 5/5 2/2 11 11
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TEHEAE 5/5 2/2 1/1 1/1
Mr. Kee Wah Sze RELRE 5/5 2/2 11 1/1

Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna is the sister of Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan
who are both Executive Directors of the Company. Ms. Lam Kim Phung
is an Executive Director, Chairman of the Board and the chairman of
the Nomination Committee of the Company, is the mother of Ms. Eav
Guech Rosanna and Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan. Save as disclosed
herein, there is no financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationship among members of the Board or between the
Chairman and the chief executive officer.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is Ms. Lam Kim Phung while the function of the chief
executive officer is divided between the remaining Executive Directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year, except for appointment of Mr. Kee Wah Sze as
independent executive Director of the Company in August 2020 and the
appointment of Ms. Lam Kim Phung as a non-executive Director of the
Company in June 2022 for a term of 3 years, the other non-executive
Directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term but are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and re-
election at annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-Laws. As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are not less exacting than those in the Code. On 24th March
2023, Ms. Lam was re-designated as an Executive Director of the
Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has set up a nomination committee on 1st April 2012. The
principle duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee comprises Ms. Lam Kim Phung as an
Executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Mr. Kee Wah Sze and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung,
Vincent. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Ms. Lam Kim Phung.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and to assess
the independence of independent non-executive Directors, review
the implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy
and make recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of
Directors.
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NOMINATION POLICY
1. OBJECTIVE

This policy was approved and adopted by the board of directors
of the Company (“the Board”) by resolution passed on 23rd
November 2018. It sets out the criteria and procedures to be
adopted when considering candidates to be appointed or re-
elected as directors of the Company.

2. NOMINATION CRITERIA

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorship:

. Character and integrity;

. Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy;

. Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
member of the Board;

. Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
adopted for achieving diversity on the Board;

o Requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the listing rules of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited applicable to the Company (the “Listing
Rules”) and whether the candidates would be considered
independent with reference to the independence guidelines
set out in the Listing Rules;

o Such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business or as suggested by the Board.

3. NOMINATION PROCESS
3.1. Nomination by the Nomination Committee

3.1.1 The Nomination Committee reviews the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board periodically and make
recommendation on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

3.1.2 When it is necessary to fill a causal vacancy or
appoint an additional director, the Nomination
Committee identifies or selects candidates as
recommended to the Committee, with or without
assistance from external agencies or the Company,
pursuant to the criteria set out in section 2;

3.1.3 If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee shall rank
them by order of preference based on the needs of
the Company and reference check of each candidate
(where applicable);
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3.1.4 The Nomination Committee makes recommendation
to the Board including the terms and conditions of the
appointment;

3.1.5 The Board deliberates and decides on the
appointment based upon the recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

3.2. Re-election of Director at Annual General Meeting

3.2.1 In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, every
director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and shall be eligible for
re-election at each annual general meeting;

3.2.2 The Nomination Committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the
retiring director. The Nomination Committee shall also
review the expertise and professional qualifications of
the retiring director, who offered himself/herself for re-
election at the annual general meeting, to determine
whether such director continues to meet the criteria as
set out in section 2;

3.2.3 Based on the review made by Nomination Committee,
the Board shall make recommendations to
shareholders on candidates standing for re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company, and
provide the available biographical information of the
retiring director in accordance with the Listing Rules
to enable shareholders to make the informed decision
on the re-election of such candidates at annual
general meeting of the Company.

3.3. Nomination by shareholders

The shareholders of the Company may propose a person for
election as a director in accordance with the Memorandum
of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company and applicable
law, details of which are set out in the “Procedures for a
shareholder to propose a person for election as director of
the Company” of this annual report.

PURPOSE, VALUES, STRATEGY AND CULTURE

The core purpose of the Company is to create value for its
shareholders. It strives to become a well renowned enterprise in
watch retail industry that is trusted by its consumers, and a place
where its employees are proud to work for. Its mission is to lead the
development of the industry and set the industry benchmarks. In this
connection, it endeavours to maintain accountability to its employees,
consumers, shareholders, the society, and the environment. These
purposes and values shape the Company’s strategy, which are geared
towards building a trusted and beloved enterprise whereby values for
shareholders are created.
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PREIBWS

The Company’s purpose, values and strategy form the foundations
of the Company’s corporate culture. Its corporate culture is centered
on adherence to high ethical standards and practices, and striving for
sustainable development.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board. Pursuant
to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, culture and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. As at 31st March
2025, the members of the Board consist of two female Directors and
four male Directors.

During the year, the Board reviewed the validity of implementation
of the Policy and considered the Policy is effective enough to ensure
diversity on the Board.

While the current senior management of the Company is a male
member, viewing from the Company’s perspective as a whole, as at
31st March 2025, the Company has 114 employees in total comprising
of approximately 82 females and 32 males (a female-to-male ratio of
2:1), reflecting a gender equality principle generally adhered by the
Company. The Company is mindful of the objectives as set out in the
diversity policy when assessing the candidacy of the employees, and
will ensure that the Company shall continue to follow the policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Remuneration Committee on 15th July 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority
and duties. The terms of reference have been updated according
with the revised Corporate Governance Code requirement effective
from 1st April 2012. The Remuneration Committee’s role is to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure
for Directors and senior management and to ensure that they are
fairly rewarded for their individual contribution to the Group’s overall
performance, having regard to the interests of shareholders. The
principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include determining
the specific remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management as well as reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Mr. Kee Wah Sze and Mr.
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent.
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting to advise
the Board on the Group’s overall remuneration policy and structure of
the remuneration of the Directors and senior management and assess
the performance of the Executive Directors and senior management. No
Director or any of his/her associates may be involved in any decisions
as to his/her own remuneration. Based on the review and discussion at
the meeting, the Remuneration Committee recommended to the Board
to approve the Group’s overall policy and structure of the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management.
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The remuneration of the senior management by band for the year HE-_ZT-_RAF=-HA=1+-—"BIFE =SHEEEBz
ended 31st March 2025 is set out below: FENEEEH AT

Remuneration bands Number of individuals g E AE
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 1,500,001/% 7t 22,000,000/ 7T 1

Further particulars regarding the Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules are set out in Note 10 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

Details of the directors’ remuneration policy is set out in the section
headed “Directors’ Report” on page 21 of this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st March 2025, the total remuneration of the
auditors of the Group for statutory audit services and other services
is HK$1,200,000 (2024: HK$1,200,000) and HK$375,000 (2024:
HK$355,000) respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Audit Committee on 1st January 1999 with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority
and duties. The Audit Committee’s role is to review the Group’s
financial reporting, internal controls and corporate governance issues
and to make relevant recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Mr. Kee Wah Sze and
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Lai
Si Ming.
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Under its terms of reference, which were prepared and adopted with
reference to the Code and “A Guide for the Formation of an Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Audit Committee is required, among other things,
to oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of internal control of the Group, to review accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Group, to engage independent
legal or other advisors as it determines is necessary and to perform
investigations.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year to review,
among other things, the interim and annual financial statements. Based
on the review and discussion at the meetings, the Audit Committee
recommended to the Board, among other things, to approve the interim
and annual financial statements of the Group and to review the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out below which had been attended during the year:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.

The Board has adopted effective mechanisms to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board. Subject to approval of the
Chairman of the Board, Directors may seek, at the Company’s expense,
independent legal, financial or other professional advices from advisors
independent to those advising the Company as and when necessary
in appropriate circumstances to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities effectively. The Board will review the implementation
and effectiveness of such mechanisms on an annual basis.

During the year, the Board reviewed the validity of implementation of
the above mechanisms and considered that the above mechanisms are
effective in ensuring that independent views and input are provided to
the Board.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company secretary is Mr. Cheng Ka Chung, a full time employee
of the Company, is responsible for advising the Board on governance
matters. During the year, the Company Secretary has complied with the
professional training requirements under the Listing Rules.

TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, the Company has arranged training for all the Directors
with a view to refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year, the
Company Secretary of the Company has complied with the relevant
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Company continuously provides updates to the Directors with
the latest developments and changes to the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements and provides training to improve the
Directors’ knowledge and skills.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has prepared a training record in order to assist the Directors

to record the training that have undertaken.

Below is a summary of the training the Directors had received during
the year under review:

Name of Directors
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REEFEERN  BEEMEZOFIBLLT

Type of
Continuing
Professional
Development

Ms. Lam Kim Phung

Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna

Mr. Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan
Mr. Lai Si Ming

Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent
Mr. Kee Wah Sze

Note :

1 Reading journals and updates relating to the economy, media business or
director’s duties and responsibilities, etc.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

On 14th August 2023, the shareholders of the Company approved by way
of a special resolution the adoption of the amended and restated bye-
laws of the Company with a view to bring its Bye-laws in alignment with
the Listing Rules and to provide flexibility to the Company in relation to the
conduct of general meetings. For more details, the announcement of the
Company dated 14th July 2023 could be referred to.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements where were prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. A statement by
the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set out on pages
46 to 51 of this annual report. As far as the Board is aware, there are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board has overall responsibility for overseeing the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems to ensure that their
effectiveness.

The Company has established a risk management (including the
environmental, social and corporate governance risk) policy set out the
process of identification, evaluation and management of the principal
risks affecting the business. The Company has also established an anti-
corruption policy to govern acceptance of advantages by employees
and a whistle-blowing policy and system to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control and other
matters.

As an ongoing process, the management has regular meetings with
the team to assess and handle the risk being identified in the daily
operation of the business. Significant risk will be reported to the
Board on a timely basis. The Board will review and assess the risk
management and internal control systems at least once a year.

During the year, the Board, with the establishment of internal audit
department to carry out the internal audit function of the Group, it
had reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control of
the Group including material controls over financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions. After the review,
the Board considered the risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate.

In addition, the Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of timely, accurate
and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material information about the
Group. The Company has adopted a Policy on Disclosure of Inside
Information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and procedures
for handling and dissemination of inside information. With those
guidelines and procedures, the Group has management controls in
place to ensure that potential inside information can be promptly
identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the Board to
decide about the need for disclosure.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they
can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Board has adopted a Shareholder’s Communication Policy in 2022
which sets out the Group’s commitment of maintaining an effective
ongoing dialogue with shareholders. The Company uses a range of
communication tools to ensure its shareholders are kept well informed
of key business imperatives. These include general meetings, interim
and annual reports, announcements and circulars. Procedure for voting
by poll has been read out by the chairman at the general meetings.
The Board reviewed the validity of implementation of the Shareholder’s
Communication Policy during the year and considered that it remained
effective in enhancing timely, transparent, accurate and open
communication between the Company and the shareholders.

At the annual general meeting held on 12th August 2024 respectively,
all directors were present to answer questions raised by shareholders
and a separate resolution was proposed by the chairman in respect
of each separate issue, including re-election of Directors, and voted
by way of poll. The Company announced the results of the poll in the
manner prescribed under the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for special general meetings requisitioned by the
shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (“Requisitionists”) shall have the right to require a special
general meeting to be called and propose any matter to be considered
at the general meeting of the Company. The Requisitionists may
deposit the written requisition for special general meeting (which shall
specify the full name of the Requisitionists, the business and proposal
to be considered at the general meeting of the Company, and shall be
signed by the Requisitionists) to the principal place of business of the
Company for the attention of the Board. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting in
specified days as provided by the Bye-laws of the Company and the
Listing Rules, the Requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director

Bye-law 103 of the Bye-laws of the Company provides that no person,
other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Head Office or at the Registration Office at least seven days before the
date of the general meeting. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under this Bye-law will commence no earlier than the day after
the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Accordingly, if a shareholder of the Company (the “Shareholder”)
wishes to propose a person other than a director of the Company
for election as a director of the Company at the general meeting (the
“Proposal”), he/she should lodge at the principal place of business in
Hong Kong of the Company at 3901, 39th Floor, The Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong (i) a written notice setting
out the Proposal; and (ii) a written notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected.

In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders of the Proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed
for election as a director of the Company, include the person’s
biographical details as required under rule 13.51(2) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and such other information (e.g.
contact details, including residential address, telephone number, and
HKID card/passport number, etc.), and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned.

The period for lodgment of above written notices shall commence not
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting
and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of the general
meeting. The Company is required under rule 13.70 of the Listing Rules
to provide the information about the Proposal in a supplementary
circular or by way of an announcement not later than 10 business days
before the general meeting. If the above written notices are received
by the Company less than 21 days prior to the general meeting,
the Company may need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act, either any number of the
registered shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of
such registered shareholders can request the Company in writing to: (a)
give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting sent to
them any statement of not more than one thousand words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Requisitionists; and it must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or
not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that an annual general meeting is called for a
date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

For any enquiry to the Board, shareholders may put forward a written
enquiry to the Company setting out details of contact (including
address and fax number etc.) by the following means:

Address: 3901, 39th Floor, The Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road

East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Fax No.: 852-28179043
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RIG - HEBKREGHRS

INTRODUCTION

The Group is committed to maintain a high standard of environmental,
social and corporate governance (“ESG”) practices by incorporating
relevant policies into its business strategies with a key focus to build a
long term relationship with its different stakeholders so as to enhance
the value of the shareholders. The board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”) has the overall responsibility for the implementation,
monitoring and evaluation of the Group’s policies on ESG issues.
The Board reviews the progress of the Group’s ESG policies with the
management of the Company on an annual basis.

REPORTING SCOPE

As the Group is principally engaged in the trading of watches and
property leasing, it is not directly involved in the production process
and hence most of the environmental impacts are indirect.

The structure of this report is by reference to Appendix C2 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. It is recommended that this report is to read together
with the Corporate Governance Report as laid down in our Annual
Report for the year ended 31st March 2025.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

Materiality: Material ESG issues are identified during the
formulation of the Group’s ESG policies and
reported in each reporting period. They are also
reviewed on an annual basis.

Quantitative: Methodologies, assumptions and calculation
for each applicable key performance indicator
(“KPI”) in this report are disclosed in the relevant
sections in this report.

Consistency: Consistent methodologies are adopted in the
calculation for each applicable KPI in this report
as compared with that in prior years to ensure
comparison of figures over time.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A

Emissions

The Group is committed to protect the environment from its
business activities and workplace by implementing measures
such as the use of power-saving devices, the promotion of
e-documents, the use of recycle papers and the reduction of
energy consumption during non-business hours with a view
to stay efficient on resource consumption and reduce impact
on environment.

During the reporting period (i.e. 1st April 2024 to 31st March
2025, “Reporting Period”), the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance incidents with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on our operation.

KPI A1.1

In view of our business nature, our primary focus of emission
is the greenhouse gas emissions coming from the electricity
consumption.

KPI A1.3, KPI A1.4 and KPI A1.6

Given the nature of our business, we do not produce
any form of hazardous waste from our operation. Hence
our focus of waste management is to reduce the level
of household waste. Our measures include the use of
recycle papers, the use of recycle toner cartridges and the
promotion of e-documents.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had generated
approximately 5.2 (2024: 5.6) tonnes of household waste.

KPI A1.5

Referring to the section headed “A.1 Emissions”.
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A.2

A3

A.4

Use of Resources

To promote an efficient use of resources in view of the
nature of our business, the Group is mainly focus on efficient
electricity usage and reduction of paper consumption. Our
measures include the use of power-saving devices, the
promotion of e-documents, the use of recycle papers and the
reduction of energy consumption during non-business hours.

KPI A2.1

The following data was coming from the core retail shops of
the Group during the Reporting Period.

Indirect energy consumption by electricity (kWh): 352,333
(2024: 334,324).

Indirect energy consumption by electricity per gross floor
area (kWh/sqg.m.): 334 (2024: 317).

KPI A2.2, KPI A2.4 and KPI A2.5

Not applicable in view of the nature of our business as
both the water consumption and packaging material are
immaterial.

KPI A2.3

Referring to the section headed “A.2 Use of Resources”.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Referring to the section headed “A.2 Use of Resources”.
KPI A3.1

Referring to the section headed “A.2 Use of Resources”.
Climate Change

KPI A4.1

Referring to the section headed “A.4 Climate Change”.

The increase in global temperature in recent decades may
lead to increase in electricity consumption by the offices
and retail shops and hence the increase in our energy

consumption and carbon emission. As such, the Group will
continue to focus on efficient electricity usage.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIR - HBREBRS

B. SOCIAL B. &

B.1 Employment B.1 Fh%

The Group has a total of 114 employees (including full time
and part-time staff) as of 31st March 2025 (31st March 2024:
103) in Hong Kong, China and Switzerland and complied
with the relevant labour laws and regulations in these
areas. Areas covered include compensation, recruitment,
promotion, working hours, rest periods, diversity and equal
opportunities, anti-discrimination, and prevention of forced
and child labour. No employee is made to work against his/
her will or work as forced labour, or subject to coercion
of any type related to work. Employment and related
documents are maintained by the personnel department
and are open to verification by any authorised personnel or
relevant statutory bodies.

KPI B1.1

Total workforce by gender during the Reporting Period: Male:
32, Female: 82 (2024: Male: 32, Female: 71).

Total workforce by employment type during the Reporting
Period: Full time: 99, Part-time: 15 (2024: Full time: 102,
Part-time: 1).

Total workforce by age group during the Reporting Period:
<25: 2, 25 to 45: 73, >45: 39 (2024: <25: 1, 25 to 45: 76,
>45: 26).

Total workforce by geographical region during the Reporting
Period: Hong Kong: 25, China: 88, Switzerland: 1 (2024:
Hong Kong: 24, China: 78, Switzerland: 1).

KPI B1.2

Employment turnover rate is defined as the percentage of
employees who left the Group during the Reporting period or
the reporting period of last year.

Employment turnover rate by gender during the Reporting
Period: Male: 16%, Female: 25% (2024: Male: 19%, Female:
15%).

Employment turnover rate by age group during the Reporting
Period: <25: 100%, 25 to 45: 20%, >45: 27% (2024: <25:
100%, 25 to 45: 14%, >45: 8%).
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RIR - HEBREBRS

B.2

B.3

Employment turnover rate by geographical region during the
Reporting Period: Hong Kong: 4%, China: 28%, Switzerland:
0% (2024: Hong Kong: 4%, China: 21%, Switzerland: 0%).

Health and Safety

Besides providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards, the Group also
maintains good hygiene standards in our shops and offices
and prevents workplace accidents. The Group has a total
of 114 employees (including full time and part-time staff) as
of 31st March 2025 (31st March 2024: 103) in Hong Kong,
China and Switzerland and complied with the relevant labour
laws and regulations in these areas.

KPI B2.1

Number of work-related fatalities during the Reporting
Period: 0 (2024: 0, 2023: 0).

Rate of work-related fatalities during the Reporting Period: 0
(2024: 0, 2023: 0).

KPI B2.2

Lost days due to work injury during the Reporting Period: 0
(2024: 0, 2023: 0).

KPI B2.3

Referring to the section headed “B.2 Health and Safety”.

Development and Training

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages to
employees in line with market trends which include medical
benefits and other staff-related insurance funds. The Group
also provides the employees with periodic job-related
trainings including but not limited to products training
and soft skills for shop operation, so that they can equip
themselves with the relevant knowledge and skills for their
work.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

KPI B3.1

Percentage of employees trained by gender during the
Reporting Period: Male: 69%, Female: 67% (2024: Male:
72%, Female: 82%).

Percentage of employees trained by employee category
during the Reporting Period: Managerial grade or above:
52%, Below managerial grade: 72% (2024: Managerial grade
or above: 46%, Below managerial grade: 89%).

KPI B3.2

Average training hours completed per employee during the
Reporting Period: Male: 29, Female: 27 (2024: Male: 29,
Female: 27).

Average training hours completed per employee by employee
category during the Reporting Period: Managerial grade or
above: 21, Below managerial grade: 21 (2024: Managerial
grade or above: 7, Below managerial grade: 34).

B.4 Labour Standards

Referring to the section headed “B.1 Employment”.
KPI B4.1
To avoid child and forced labour, the Group has measures
to verify the identity and age of the employees during the
recruitment process so as to comply with the relevant labour
laws and regulations.
KPI B4.2
The Group has channels to allow reporting of suspicious
cases of child and forced labour so as to minimize the
chance of such occurrence in our Group.
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B.5

B.6

Supply Chain Management

The Group has maintained strong and solid relationship
with our key suppliers by constantly exchanging views
on the business operation including by not limited to
the environmental and social aspects of their operations
which might involve the discussion on the promotion of
environmentally preferable products and services. With
a stable and solid supply chain, our product’s quality is
maintained. In addition, the Group has established goods
return policy to ensure that the customer’s interest is
protected. The Group also protects customer privacy
and supplier performance relating to sustainability. The
Group protects its intellectual property rights by constantly
reviewing the usage and registration of its domain names
and trademarks.

KPI B5.1

Number of key suppliers by geographical region during the
Reporting Period: Hong Kong: 0, China: 3, Switzerland: 0
(2024: Hong Kong: 0, China: 3, Switzerland: 0).

KPI B5.2, KPI B5.3 and KPI B5.4

Referring to the section headed “B.5 Supply Chain
Management”.

Product Responsibility

Referring to the section headed “B.5 Supply Chain
Management”.

KPI B6.1

Percentage of products sold subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons during the Reporting Period: 0% (2024: 0%).

KPI B6.2

Number of products and service related complaints received
during the Reporting Period: 0 (2024: 0).

KPI B6.3, KPI B6.4 and KPI B6.5

Referring to the section headed “B.5 Supply Chain
Management”.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B.7 Anti-corruption
The Group promotes and cultivates a high integrity corporate
culture which includes the implementation of policies to
encourage whistleblowing and anti-corruption reporting. The
Group has channels to allow reporting of suspicious cases of
anti-corruption. References of relevant laws and regulations
in relation to bribery, corruption and money laundering are
distributed to the employees and are reviewed on a regular
basis.
KPI B7.1
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
during the Reporting Period: 0 (2024: 0).
KPI B7.2 and KPI B7.3
Referring to the section headed “B.7 Anti-corruption”.

B.8 Community Investment
The Group supports and understands the needs of the
communities and makes donations to the needed when
necessary but there is no particular area that the Group is
focus on.
KPI B8.1
Referring to the section headed “B.8 Community
Investment”.
KPI B8.2
The Group made some donations to a cancer fund during the
Reporting Period and in the same period last year.
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A\ Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ASIA COMMERCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia
Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 52 to 154, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st March 2025, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st
March 2025, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the Group’s investment properties
to the consolidated financial statements and significant judgment
is required in determining the valuation. As at 31st March 2025, the
Group’s investment properties amounted to HK$310,207,000 which
represented 43.5% of the Group’s total assets. Fair value losses
on investment properties of HK$37,241,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended.

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value based on
valuation performed by independent qualified professional valuers
(“External Valuers”). The valuation was dependent on certain key
estimates which require significant judgement including, comparable
transaction prices of similar properties. The valuation of investment
properties under development is also dependent on the estimated
costs to complete and expected developer’s profit margin.

The accounting policy and disclosures in relation to the investment
properties are set out in notes 2(e), 4(a)(i) and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness of
the valuation of investment properties included:

o Evaluating the competence, capability and objectivity of the
External Valuers;

o Obtaining an understanding of the valuation methodologies,
performance of the property markets, significant assumptions
and critical judgement applied to key inputs and data used in the
valuations;

o Assessing whether consistent methodologies were applied in
valuing the investment properties and, with the assistance of
our valuation specialists, evaluating the methodologies, key
assumptions and data used in the valuations, including estimated
selling prices and comparable market transactions for similar
properties. Additionally, testing, on a sample basis, the valuation
data including the estimated completion costs against the
underlying contracts and records.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Valuation of inventories

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter due
to the significance of the inventories to the consolidated financial
statements and significant judgement is required in determining the net
realisable value (“NRV”). As at 31st March 2025, the carrying amount of
the inventories amounted to HK$100,850,000 which represented 14.1%
of the Group’s total assets.

NRV represents the estimated selling prices for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
The NRV of the watches are determined by considering the saleability
of watches based on current condition of the inventories, market
conditions, pricing policies, latest available sales information and other
factors.

The accounting policy and disclosures in relation to the inventories
are set out in notes 2(i), 4(a)(ii) and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness of
the valuation of the inventories included:

° Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s policy for making
allowance for watches and management’s process in identifying
slow-moving watches and determining the write-downs;

. Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the inventory aging
report;

. Assessing whether any write-downs of inventories to NRV at the
end of the reporting period were consistent with the Group’s
inventory policy by recalculating, on a sample basis, the write-
downs based on the Group’s policy;

o Assessing, on a sample basis, the reasonableness and
appropriateness of the NRV estimates with reference to the
inventory usage and sales information subsequent to the end of
the reporting period, if any, and test the subsequent sales on a
sample basis;

o Testing, on a sample basis, the NRV of selected inventory items
by comparing the estimated selling price less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale
against their carrying amounts.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 1% EIMm R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for
forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performed for purposes of the group -audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguard applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26th June 2025

Lam Cheung Shing
Practising Certificate Number P03552
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

nllTI:l E‘ﬁﬁ%
For the year ended 31st March 2025 #HE-ZT-_AF=A=+—HILFE

2025 2024
—E-FF —TZNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Ff 5 FET FET
Revenue EEWA 5 709,373 705,403
Cost of sales and services rendered $HE ARt AR 75 #Y A AR (476,865) (471,038)
Gross profit EF 232,508 234,365
Other revenue H 2 6 5,066 4,834
Other net gains/(losses) Hit e/ (F18) F5E 7 7,876 (179)
Fair value losses on investment BEMEZAREEE  FE
properties, net 15 (37,241) (31,731)
Distribution costs 7 88 PR AN (99,346) (100,436)
Administrative expenses THRER (34,839) (30,768)
Impairment loss recognised on right-of-use  F B AER A Z REEE
assets 14(c)(iii) (3,036) -
Impairment loss recognised on trade and B 58 L FE I AR SRR
other receivables REEE 9(c) (1,282) (413)
Finance costs EA TS BN 9(a) (9,102) (10,578)
Profit before taxation B %4 Al 5 F 9 60,604 65,094
Income tax Fig %t 11 (36,140) (38,893)
Profit for the year A EEER 24,464 26,201
Attributable to: BER
Owners of the Company ViN/NETESFEIN 24,465 26,202
Non-controlling interests JEFE S #E 2 (1) 1)
24,464 26,201
HK cents HK cents
B JEN
Earnings per share BRER 13
Basic and diluted ERKREE 3.27 3.51

The notes on pages 59 to 154 form part of these consolidated financial
statements.

Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to
profit for the year are set out in Note 12(a).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT

OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GOBRRHEMEENRER

For the year ended 31st March 2025 #HE-ZT-AF=A=+—HILFE

2025 2024
—E-hF —ZTE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit for the year AEERR 24,464 26,201
Other comprehensive loss for the year AEEHMEHEER
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to KEEE AR ET Y A E Bm
profit or loss: ZIER :
Exchange differences on translation of BREBINEBEE L
foreign operations EH =58 (1,013) (7,347)
Total other comprehensive loss for the year, net ~AFEHMASTEEIE -
of nil tax MBRZHI1E (1,013) (7,347)
Total comprehensive income for the year REEHADEKE 23,451 18,854
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEHIERREEN:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VN/NEIES Y SN 23,452 18,855
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR HE 2 (1) (1)
23,451 18,854
The notes on pages 59 to 154 form part of these consolidated financial FE9BEF1548 T E RIS ISk 2 B2 E0
statements. 5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MIFIRIRR

As at 31st March 2025 RZ-ZZ-HAF=A=+—H

2025 2024
—E-HE —E_MF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Bt & FET FET
Non-current assets FRENEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - HEEE R AR 14 44,018 67,765
Investment properties wEYE 15 310,207 338,596
Deposits and other receivables R Ko HoAh & Y BR 3K 19 3,134 4,306
Financial assets at fair value through RAon B AE@mLZ
profit or loss LA E 17 7,498 7,487
Equity instrument at fair value through BAgEst AEME
other comprehensive income o T A 17 3,025 3,043
Deferred tax assets EERIE A &= 26(a) - 2,418
367,882 423,615
Current assets REEE
Inventories 5 18 100,850 105,643
Trade and other receivables 2 5 & H A el AR 19 64,924 78,391
Trading securities BHFEE 20 15 16
Short-term bank deposit HHEIIRIT R 21 5,338 -
Cash and cash equivalents REeERBRELEED 21 173,968 164,940
345,095 348,990
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N At & 15 AR 3N 22 75,210 80,382
Contract liabilities SREE 23 436 1,127
Bank loans BOES 25 134,320 158,840
Income tax payable TSR 13,159 15,139
Lease liabilities HEBE 24 17,368 20,955
240,493 276,443
Net current assets REEEFHR 104,602 72,547
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABEE 472,484 496,162
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Rental deposits received and 205 & 78 Uk
receipt in advance < HEES 22 2,704 2,659
Deferred tax liabilities LR BB A 26(a) 14,010 23,125
Lease liabilities HEBE 24 13,802 25,861
30,516 51,645
Net assets EERR 441,968 444,517
Capital and reserves BAREE
Share capital fig R 27 149,424 149,424
Reserves =i 292,549 295,097
Equity attributable to owners of the BEBREALNFABEAZER
Company 441,973 444,521
Non-controlling interests IR RER (5) “4)
Total equity A 441,968 444,517
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th June 2025 and signed on its behalf by:
RZEBEZRFAAZTABEEESRALEETE THTIIESRERE
Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan Eav Guech Rosanna
5% 87 BE
Director Director
EZE EZE
The notes on pages 59 to 154 form part of these consolidated financial E59E EF154B 7 MBI A P IS HwER 2 B EL

statements. e
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The notes on pages 59 to 154 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

56| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HREMERER

As at 31st March 2025 RZ-ZE-—HF=A=+—H

2025 2024
—E-REF —E_MF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
[{hg=3 FETT FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEEK
Profit before taxation B 54 il g A 60,604 65,094
Adjustments for: BEE=SE
Fair value losses on investment properties, #R&MH¥ 2 AR EEIE  F5E
net 5 37,241 31,731
Net unrealised loss on trading securities BAREEABTREGEFA 7 1 8
Loss on write off of property, plant and Wi MBREREEE
equipment 7 70 -
Write-down/(reversal of write-down) of WOR, (BRIWOR) S FE8
inventories, net 18 2,578 (1,400)
Impairment loss (reversed)/recognised on B o REERE R (Bm) HER
trade receivables B 9(c) (473) 251
Impairment loss recognised on other H {th B UL AR SRR RR
receivables B E 18 9(c) 1,755 162
Gain on lease modification HEERz W= 7 (248) -
Impairment loss recognised on right-of-use  ({FBREEAERZ 2 REEIE
assets 14 3,036 -
Net loss on disposal of investment HEREYEZFER
properties 7 - 120
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets at = R AR E AEZ
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) (B~ Bzt ABZEL 2
CREEZANE
(W) &8 7 (11) 67
Bank interest income RITF BUWA 6 (1,975) (2,555)
Interest expenses FE X 9(a) 9,102 10,578
Depreciation e 14 26,287 29,822
Write-off of inventories WiETE 7 17 -
Exchange differences JEH = 545 3,960
138,529 137,838
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL EEESEH
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, () 2,187 (7,534)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5) K E A FE YRR 3R
other receivables A, (38 n) 12,820 (16,900)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other B 5 N Hoh T BR R
payables CRid) /% hn (4,958) 1,662
Increase/(decrease) in rental deposits B RER 2 HE
received and receipt in advance mem CRd) 100 (40)
Decrease in contract liabilities BHEERD (685) (58)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS EEREEZERS 147,993 114,968
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid ERMzHRCEMER (44,686) (44,476)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM EERKEEK 2
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BHEFE 103,307 70,492
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

As at 31st March 2025 RZ-ZZ-HAF=A=+—H

2025 2024
—E-REF —E_MF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
[{hg=3 FETT FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEK
Payment for purchase of property, TRARBEWE - IR REE
plant and equipment (337) (2,827)
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREYEMSRE
properties - 1,480
Payment for construction of investment S EEREE
properties (8,483) (10,305)
Placement of bank deposit BFHERITE R (5,338) -
Bank interest income received 2 WERTT A B YA 1,975 2,555
NET CASH USED IN EARKREEKZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES B EE (12,183) (9,097)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mh &
Proceeds from new bank loans IRITHBEAMERIE 56,000 65,000
Repayment of bank loans BERTEE (80,520) (80,520)
Interest paid on bank loans BITEEZENFE (7,222) (8,288)
Capital element of lease liabilities paid ENAEaEZEAD (20,714) (21,221)
Interest element of lease liabilities paid ENEEEEZF B0 (1,923) (2,318)
Dividend paid BT R 2 12(b) (26,000 (35,040)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING EARRETEH 2
ACTIVITIES ReFEHE (80,379) (82,387)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH RERBESEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #hn GRd) B8 10,745 (20,992)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUNRESLRLEEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 164,940 194,441
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXSEHEE FE
RATE CHANGES, NET (1,717) (8,509)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FREGCRESEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR 173,968 164,940
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH RERBESEEYERDN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and on hand BITIERRFERS 21 173,968 164,940
The notes on pages 59 to 154 form part of these consolidated financial E598 £ E1548 2 Wi B IR A MR ER 2 B85
statements. 5o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Asia Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in sales of watches and property leasing.

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Bermuda
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are Victoria
Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM10, Bermuda
and Room 3901, 39th Floor, The Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong respectively. As at 31st March
2025, the directors of the Company consider that the immediate
and ultimate holding company is Century Hero International
Limited (“Century Hero”), a company which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. Century Hero does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousand
of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated.
The consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 26th June 2025.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards, which
includes all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), In addition, the
consolidated financial statements comply with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. Material
accounting policy information adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards which are mandatorily effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on the initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2025 incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the following assets are stated at their fair value
as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment property, including interests in leasehold
land and buildings held as investment property where
the Group is the registered owner of the property
interest; and

- investments in equity securities and club debentures.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS Accounting Standards requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors believed to be reasonable ‘under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying amount of assets and
liabilities not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRS Accounting Standards that have significant effect on
the consolidated financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entitles controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered. The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an entity if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the elements of control.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when, control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note
2(d))-

In' the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(h)), unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale).

Investments and other financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income, or through profit
or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(d) Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at

its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair

value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are

expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in

their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are

solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on

the Group’s business model for managing the asset and

the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in other gains/(losses), together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss.

o FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and
impairment expenses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(d)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss
on a debt investment that is subsequently measured
at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and presented
net within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it
arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments
in' other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss
as other income in accordance with the policy set out in Note
2(u)(iii), unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment.

Financial assets at FVPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the other
revenue line item, unless the dividends clearly represent a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement of profit
or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(e)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see Note 2(g)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

Investment properties also include leased properties which
are being recognised as right-of-use assets and subleased
by the Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they
are still in the course of construction or development at the
end of the reporting period and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising from
a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in Note 2(u).

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

If a property becomes an owner-occupied property because
its use has been changed as evidenced by commencement
of owner-occupation, the fair value of the property at the
date of change in use is considered as the deemed cost for
subsequent accounting.

HEH72024/2025

R §5 ER R B 5F

2. REBERSASHERER ()

(e)

BEmE

REWETER AR E# R (R M EE2(9)
HAEERBKRESBAR,HEXFE L
W&, RAEF o L B IR R E 15 2R
Rz LA RIEABES B RKERER
REMERENWE -

REMENBEEENE  DERRERAE
BERBAASBEREREMESERMED
Gz

BREMEZARERY) BRIEERBEHRR
DEEERAEEREY  REAAEERD
BERI SEHGT B o EE QR B S A ME
S HERBREMEREE 2 REREIRY
MIER AR - REMENE S WARM T
2(u) Pt A B o

EEREMEEEANEERNABE R REE
BREWMENH D REE -

BREMERHERIRBREMEXATBRE
RABEHEETGELRKLENREL L
HERR - R IR EMELN ERERE
BORHEMSRAEFREEERAEMNE
BAHE ) R R L HEREIERN RS AR -

WY ERBRRAEEAMEREERE RS
RYERE  MERKEFTZRERABME
REEREARZ A ARE-

Annual Report 2024/2025 |65



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see Note

2(h)):

- interests in leasehold land and buildings where the
Group is the registered owner of the property interest
(see Note 2(9));

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold
properties where the Group is not the registered owner
of the property interest; and

- other items of plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets arising from leases of 'underlying plant and
equipment (see Note 2(g)).

If a property becomes an investment property because its
use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation,
any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that property (including the relevant leasehold land
classified as right-of-use assets) at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement
of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be
transferred directly to retained profits.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

()

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and is recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve
to retained profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over

their estimated useful lives.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(9)

Leases (Continued)

(i

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components. Non-lease components
are separated from lease component(s) and are
accounted for by applying other applicable standards.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis
over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments (less any lease incentives receivable) payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing
rate. After initial recognition, the lease liability is
measured at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred. Lease
payments also include amounts expected to be payable
by the Group under residual value guarantees; the
exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and payments
of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using
the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(g) Leases (Continued)

(i

HEH72024/2025

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets also
includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, and is reduced by any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Notes 2(f) and 2(h)) and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities
other than adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from
COVID-19-related rent concessions in which the Group
applied the practical expedient, except for the following
types of right-of-use asset:

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment property are carried at fair value in
accordance with Note 2(e); and

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold land and
buildings where the Group is the registered owner
of the leasehold interest are carried at cost in
accordance with Note 2(f).

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is
accounted for separately from the right-of-use assets
in accordance with the accounting policy applicable
to financial asset measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the initial fair value and the nominal
value of the deposits is accounted for as additional
lease payments made and is included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

The Group presents right-of-use assets, that do not
meet the definition of investment property, in “property,
plant and equipment”, the same line item within
which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned. Right-of-use assets
that meet the definition of investment property are
presented within “investment properties”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. IRBEBEREASHBFRSEE (58)
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(g) Leases (Continued) (g) TAE (48)
() As alessee (Continued) (i) EREMBEA (&)
The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change ERKHcABAREEARAKRBENK
in future lease payments arising from a change in ME—FEHLLRETMEE
an index or rate used to determine those payments, AEBEEBRREEERERGFBERE
or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the NWeEaE Alg@ERERRES
amount expected to be payable under a residual By BEER R S ETH E I FOE 1T RE
value guarantee, by discounting the revised lease B EMTEHERE  RIFHENK
payments using an unchanged discount rate, unless HE)EHNZER RSB - £ZIF
the change in lease payments results from a change SLN AR A B R R E R
in floating interest rates. In that case, the lessee shall KEETRNA R - R BT HAEER
use a revised discount rate that reflects changes in the BAEEBEMEESTERE  BEIK
interest rate. When there is a change arising from the IFEEEmMEESETHE . HEAGE
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably EIBE BT E RY SR E
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination NRETIFREHFTE - KLIETH
option, the lease liability is remeasured by discounting AR EAAEPAESMNRSHEEHR
the revised lease payments using a revised discount AR A AEBREFHTEHBEHHN
rate, being the interest rate implicit in the lease for the FEIZEFRFE (WHEEFRSHFET
remainder of the lease term, or the Group’s incremental BERASHET) - EME—FRE
borrowing rate at the date of reassessment, if the FHEHEaEN CAEEENRE
interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily FEGEREFAE  sSWERREEE
determined. When the lease liability is remeasured in HEREEERET - AJRBRERTIE -

either of these ways, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a EHEHREASEREESHNRE
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration TEBEHHERBEAZ L ((HE
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the Bekl) - BRIEABEBHEEARE -
lease contract (“lease modification”) and that is not AIMEHHEBBETENE - 0%
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case, the BRT - RERSHEKE D BLEL
consideration in the modified contract is allocated B LIRS HER LD BB LB
to each lease component on the basis of the BIEREESNTHRESREFE
relative stand-alone price of the lease component HEARIT» - HEABRESETH
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non- MENFAMEERR - CRALEFTHA
lease components. The lease liability is remeasured WERAEHRENBETRZE - H—HH
based on the revised lease payments and lease term SNEEEECOVID-19Z BELEMHES
using a revised discount rate at the effective date e REEBBUBREERFE16
of the modification. The only exceptions are rent SR E B A6BER FT R M 51 - TEZ 15
concessions that occurred as a direct consequence of S AEBF AR ITRE AN GAE
the COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions set ERERBREERE - WERESZ
out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such BERAREHENT  EEEHESE
cases, the Group has taken advantage of the practical WEHSIERE LB IBSPER -

expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions
are lease modifications, and recognised the change
in consideration as negative variable lease payments
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concessions occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(g) Leases (Continued)

(i

(i)

HEH72024/2025

As a lessee (Continued)

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position. In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such
costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term except for investment

properties measured under fair value model.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with Note

2(u)(ii).

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
lease is classified as a finance lease or as an operating
lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-
term lease to which the Group applies the exemption
described in Note 2(g)(i), then the Group classifies the
sub-lease as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (ECLs) on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade
and other receivables); and

- financial guarantee contracts, which are not
measured at FVPL.

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including
equity securities measured at FVPL and equity
securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling), are not
subject to the ECLs assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses over the expected life of the financial instrument.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting
is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

- financial guarantee contracts: current market
assessment of the time value of money and the
risks that are specific to the cash flows but only
if, and to the extent that, the risks are taken into
account by adjusting the discount rate instead of
adjusting the cash shortfalls being discounted.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

RRBEREASHBKRER ()

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (h) E8BEREERIE(E)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued) () XEeHMTAZIEEEK(E)

HEH72024/2025

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors and
an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

RRBEREASHBKRER ()

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (h) E8BEREERIE(E)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued) () XEeHMTAZIEEEK(E)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring-on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
(i) the financial asset is 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i

Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

- an actual or expected internal credit rating
downgrade for the borrower;

- an actual or expected significant change in the
operating results of the borrower;

- significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same borrower;

- significant changes in the value of the collateral
supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-
party guarantees or credit enhancements, which
are expected to reduce the borrower’s economic
incentive to make scheduled contractual payments
or to otherwise have an effect on the probability of
a default occurring;

- significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed on
a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

The Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

RRBEREASHBKRER ()

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (h) E8BEREERIE(E)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued) () XEeHMTAZIEEEK(E)

Measurement and recognition of ECLs

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECLs reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. The historical loss
rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECLs on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience and forward looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECLs amount
is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with Note
2(u)(iv) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

RRBEREASHBKRER ()

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (h) E8BEREERIE(E)
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued) () XEeHMTAZIEEEK(E)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

RRBEREASHBKRER ()

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (h)y E8BEREERIE(E)

(i)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised
within “trade and other payables” at fair value, which
is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available with
the estimated rates that lenders would have charged,
had the guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor
will default on the contract and recognises a provision
when ECLs on the financial guarantee is determined
to be higher than the carrying amount carried in “trade
and other payables” in respect of the guarantee (i.e.
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the
risk of default of the specified debtor since the issuance
of the guarantee. A 12-month ECLs is measured unless
the risk that the specified debtor will default has
increased significantly since the guarantee is issued,
in which case a lifetime ECLs is measured. The same
definition of default and the same assessment of
significant increase in credit risk as described above

apply.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

RRBEREASHBKRER ()

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (h) E8BEREERIE(E)

(i) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued (i) EfEHHBERZEERAX (&)
(Continued)
As the Group is required to make payments only in the AR AEEEANBEEERIAEDN
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance IEFEEEBARZOBERMNT &
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an TEHEEEBEBNZESERBEESAA
ECL is estimated based on the expected payments to ELXHNEEEAMELOMR  BA
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less SEEBEEREFEAGEEEK A
any amount that the Group expects to receive from the EE A L) WEA R RIB G ET ©
holder of the guarantee, the specified debtor or any EHAcEERBERRENERRF
other party. The amount is then discounted using the ZELIR - W & W E W E R R 1F
current risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the H o
cash flows.

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets (iii) FFEHEERE

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Internal and external
sources of information are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(iii)  Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible
assets that are not yet available for use and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is
any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
A portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset (for example, head office building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if
the allocation can be done on a reasonable and
consistent basis, or to the smallest group of cash-
generating units if otherwise.

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit
(or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(ifi)

(iv)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Reversal of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see
Notes 2(h)(i) and (iii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

U]

1)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in
the production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated on a first-in, first-out basis and
comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and
other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale. Costs necessary to make the sale include incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale and non-incremental
costs which the Group must incur to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue (see Note 2(u)). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional
right to receive non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see
Note 2(h)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see Note 2(u)(iv)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. It revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction price.
Trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs. All receivables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, less allowance for ECL (see note 2(h)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing cost (see Note 2(w)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other
payables are stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at invoice amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for expected credit losses (ECLs) in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(h)(i).

Cash at bank excludes bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no longer
meeting the definition of cash.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

n

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares
are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.
Consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, for purchase of the Company’s ordinary
shares is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Company’s ordinary shares.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(r) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(ifi)

HEH72024/2025

Defined benefit plan obligations

The Group has a defined benefit plan, representing
long service payment (“LSP”) under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The Group’s net defined
benefit obligation is measured by discounting the
estimated cost to the Group of the benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in
the current and prior periods, after deducting the
negative service cost arising from the accrued benefits
derived from the Group’s MPF contributions that have
been vested with employees, which are deemed to be
contributions from the relevant employees.

Current service cost, any past service cost and net
interest expense are recognised in profit or loss. Net
interest is determined by using the net defined benefit
obligations and the discount rate determined at the
beginning of the year, and also taking into account
any changes in the net defined benefit obligations
during the year resulting from contributions or benefit
payments. Remeasurements arising from defined
benefit plan, which comprise actuarial gains and losses
and the effect of any asset ceiling (excluding interest),
are recognised immediately in other comprehensive
income.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(s)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, the entity has sufficient taxable temporary
differences relating to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, which will result in taxable amounts
against which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. IRBEBEREASHBFREE (£8)
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(s) Income tax (Continued) (s) PRiSTH (48)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are:

- temporary differences arising from the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination) and do not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences; and

- temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2(e),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the reporting date, unless the properties
are depreciable and are held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the properties over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(s) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and

movements therein, are presented separately from each

other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset

against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against

current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions

are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future

period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.

(t) Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous contracts

(i

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group
is also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(t) Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous contracts
(Continued)

(i)  Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, a separate asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The
amount recognised for the reimbursement is limited to
the carrying amount of the provision.

(i) Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts
are recognised and measured as provisions. An
onerous contract exists when the Group has a contract
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.
The cost of fulfilling a contract comprises the costs
that relate directly to the contract, which consist of
both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials); and an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts—
for example, an allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling that contract. Provisions for onerous contracts
are measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the net
cost of fulfilling with the contract.

(u) Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

In determining whether the Group acts as a principal or as an
agent, it considers whether it obtains control of the products
or services before they are transferred to the customers.
Control refers to the Group’s ability to direct the use of and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from the
products or services.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(u)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time if one of the following criteria is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer at contract inception, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. The Group takes advantage
of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15
and does not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of financing is
12 months or less.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i)  Sales of watches

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products.

(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Variable lease payments for
operating leases that depend on an index or a rate are
estimated and included in the total lease payments to
be recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

R §5 ER R B 5F

2. REBERSASHERER ()

(u)

UWE R E UL A (£8)

BRAREEWE R HE MR ATERBR R 2 E—
FEEBHEHINT -

(). EHHE

WEREPEBLEMNEMSHER -

(i) HEHEZHBYPA

K2l E 2z BYGES WA R EE
PR Z ) R A E RN B R NRER -
BaEEMEESNKREERZEE
BEMSHNE ER - e EAAREKRM
AGIs - MEEEERAANERS —
EERKEEZENTDEN & -
HURNIE BB L R EHE 2 A &
HENFETEE - Wt ANEREE
REERA T AEREE N AR
e NEURR BN E A #HE
MR E R & 5T R ERAWA

Annual Report 2024/2025 |91



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(u)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(ifi)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established. Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
(other than purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets) measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see Note 2(h)(i)).

Service income

Service income is recognised when the services are
rendered and accepted by customers.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised as
income in profit or loss of the period in which it
becomes receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(v)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used as effective hedge a
net investment in a foreign operation which are recognised
in other comprehensive income and for exchange differences
on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit
or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s net
investment in the foreign operation.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates and are not re-translated. The transaction date is the
date on which the Company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated
at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured. When a fair
value gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is also recognised in profit or loss. When a fair value
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions are used. Statement of financial
position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

RRBEREASHBKRER ()

(w) f8ERIAK

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
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its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of EHRETESRTR  EERKAER LY
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially (==
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
(x) Related parties (x) BIEAZL

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
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conditions applies: SEEA:

() The entity and the Group are members of the () ZERBERSEEBER -—SBE K
same group (which means that each parent, BAR (MEHEEB—F2A K
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the BARKRFREBEARHEHH
others). ) o

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (ii) —Fﬁ%‘é‘%ﬁm ?-i 3? Al

other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

#"Tiééﬁ% H\EF

member). BAKERTA) -
(i) Both the entity and the Group are joint ventures of (i) BREERAEEHABERE=FH
the same third party. EREDRE-

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy, —HERBAE-FEBZAED
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. ¥ ME—ERAIAZE=FE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICY INFORMATION (Continued)

(x)

(v)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vij A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the discrete financial information provided regularly to
the board of directors of the Company, the Group’s most
senior executive management, for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs and
HKAS issued by the HKICPA for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 and
Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements

and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs and HKAS in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has not applied any new or amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards that are not yet effective for the current
year.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

In the process of applying of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 2, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainties

(i

(i)

HEH72024/2025

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
determined based on valuations conducted by
independent qualified professional valuers. In
determining the fair values, the valuers have based
on a method of valuation which involves certain
estimates of market condition.
valuation reports, the directors of the Company have

In relying on the

exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the
assumptions used in the valuation are appropriate
and reflective of the current market conditions. Any
changes to these assumptions would result in changes
in the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
impacting the amount of gain or loss reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at
31st March 2025, the fair value of the investment
properties was approximately HK$310,207,000 (2024:
HK$338,596,000).

Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Management performs regular reviews
on the inventory write-down policy and assesses
the net realisable value of the watches based on the
saleability and condition of inventories, prevailing
market conditions, pricing policy, historical and recent
sales information, the Group’s sales plan and inventory
aging analysis to identify slow-moving items. At each
reporting date, an inventory review is conducted, and
inventories are written down to their estimated net
realisable value where applicable. The determination of
write-downs involves the use of estimates. When the
expectation of the net realisable value is less than the
original estimate, further write-down may arise. As at
31st March 2025, the carrying amount of inventories
(net of write-down) was approximately HK$100,850,000
(2024: HK$105,643,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

(@) Key sources of estimation uncertainties (Continued)

(ifi)

(iv)

Provision of ECLs for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant balances and
credit-impaired are assessed for ECLs individually. In
addition, the Group uses provision matrix to calculate
ECLs for the trade receivables which are individually
insignificant. The provision rates are based on
groupings of various debtors that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is based on the Group’s
historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired are assessed for ECLs individually.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECLs and the
Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in Notes 29
and 19 respectively.

Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group estimates its income tax provision
in accordance with the prevailing tax rules and
regulations, taking into account any special approvals
obtained from relevant tax authorities and any
preferential tax treatment to which it is entitled in each
location or jurisdiction in which the Group operates.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

(@) Key sources of estimation uncertainties (Continued)

(iv)

HEH72024/2025

Income tax and deferred taxation (Continued)

The Group believes it has recorded adequate
current tax provision based on the prevailing tax
rules and regulations and its current best estimates
and assumptions. In the event that future tax rules
and regulations or related circumstances change,
adjustments to current taxation may be necessary
which would impact the Group’s results or financial
position. As at 31st March 2025, the carrying amount
of ‘current income tax payable was approximately
HK$13,159,000 (2024: HK$15,139,000).

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised as
the directors consider it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
tax assets and tax expenses or other comprehensive
income in the periods in which such estimate is
changed. As at 31st March 2025, the carrying amount
of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
amounted to approximately HK$Nil and HK$14,010,000
respectively (2024: HK$2,418,000 and HK$23,125,000).

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
are not held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore,
investment properties, the directors of the Company
have determined that the presumption that the carrying

in determining the deferred taxation on

amounts of investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
not rebutted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

4. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

(a) Key sources of estimation uncertainties (Continued)
(v)  Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgement and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in estimating the recoverable amounts
including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the assets belongs, including
allocation of corporate assets when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established,
otherwise recoverable amount is determined at the
smallest group of cash generating units, for which
the relevant corporate assets have been allocated.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the recoverable
amounts.

As at 31st March 2025, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment subject to impairment
assessment were approximately HK$44,018,000 (2024:
HK$67,765,000).

(b) Significant accounting judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

()  Determining the lease term

As explained in the above accounting policies, the
lease liability is initially recognised at the present value
of the lease payments payable over the lease term. In
determining the lease term at the commencement date
for leases that include renewal options exercisable
by the Group, the Group evaluates the likelihood of
exercising the renewal options taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances that create
an economic incentive for the Group to exercise
the option, including favourable terms, leasehold
improvements undertaken and the importance of that
underlying asset to the Group’s operation. The lease
term is reassessed when there is a significant event or
significant change in circumstance that is within the
Group’s control. Any increase or decrease in the lease
term would affect the amount of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets recognised in future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are sales of watches and
property leasing.

Revenue represents (i) the gross proceeds received and receivable
derived from the sale of watches, less the value added tax,
other sales taxes and trade discounts and (ii) rental income from
property leasing.

For sales of watches, revenue is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being at the point the customer purchased
the goods at the retail shops, including those sales through
department stores and on consignment. Retail sales are normally
settled in cash or credit cards with the settlement from the
corresponding banks or other financial institutions within 3 days.
Payment of the transaction price is due immediately at the point
the customer purchases the goods. A credit period of not more
than 90 days is granted to department stores and consignees who
receive the payment on behalf of the Group.

All sales contracts are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
major products or service lines is as follows:

R §5 ER R B 5F

EXIWA

AEBzTEXBRBEREENRYENEE -
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EEH -

PIBHESNO R —FRERER - REFTE
B mE ERF16R [ TP A KU EE | PR I
ERERARRAENAN IR SER -

EERRAE D

RIZEREARBREANDZIREEFPANZIEE
WAMT :

2025 2024
—E-AHE —EZNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Revenue from contracts with customers BB EREERE1S5EEA

within the scope of HKFRS 15 REEPADHz Y m

- Sales of watches — BERHE 698,975 696,162
- Service income — R WA 1,167 946
Revenue from other sources R 8 E At 2ROR 2 W ws 700,142 697,108
- Rental income from investment properties — RBEREMEZHSRA 9,231 8,295
709,373 705,403

Disaggregation of revenue by the timing of revenue recognition
and by geographic markets is disclosed in Note 8.

HEH72024/2025
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

6. OTHER REVENUE 6. Hfthlilyas
2025 2024
—E_RE —E-MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest income on financial assets measured N EK AT EZERMEE
at amortised cost B WA 1,975 2,555
Advertising income BEEA 367 494
Customer services income and others BER RIS WA R EH A 2,724 1,785
5,066 4,834
7. OTHER NET GAINS/(LOSSES) 7. HibUgzs, (518) B8
2025 2024
—EBE-REF T _MF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FET
Net realised and unrealised loss on BHEBEHRAREHRZ
trading securities B8 FE (1) 8)
Net loss on disposal of investment properties HEREMEZEEFE - (120)
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets at BAnEFABE ([BAnE
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) SABR N ZEMEEZ
AAEkE (EE) 11 (67)
Loss on write off of property, plant and MY A R R
equipment, net ZEE (70) -
Gain on lease modification HEBT 2K 248 -
Write off of inventories MiEFE (17) -
Government subsidies (Note) BT B (PR ) 6,555 10
Others Hh 1,150 6
7,876 (179)
Note: G

For the year ended 31st March 2025, the amount primarily comprised
government grants received from the PRC government in the form of
financial subsidies. There grants were unconditional, with no unfulfilled
obligations or contingency terms attached.

During the year ended 31st March 2024, the amount mainly represented
grants obtained from the PRC government in relation to employment
support subsidy. There are no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies
attaching to these grants.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the board of directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision makers (“CODM”) for the purposes of
resource allocations and performance assessments. The Group
has identified two reportable segments: (i) sales of watches and (ii)
properties leasing. No operating segments have been aggregated
to form these two reportable segments.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the CODM monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

The accounting policy information of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s material accounting policy information
described in notes to the consolidated financial statements.
Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit earned by/(loss) from
each segment without allocation of central administration costs
and corporate costs which cannot be meaningfully allocated to
individual segment. This is the measure reported to the CODM for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation and amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The revenue from external parties reported to the CODM is
measured in @ manner consistent with that in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
deferred tax assets and other corporate assets.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and borrowings not
attributable to individual segments and other corporate liabilities.

HEH72024/2025
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) DEIRE (£8)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, assets UTAREBEEDIMZ EHERA - $£E-BE
and liabilities by operating segment: FaEzoN:
2025
—ECRE
Sales of Property Segmental
watches leasing total Unallocated Total
HEHE HENE ABET L) @it
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Disaggregated by timing of revenue recognition REANE 2 BB
Point in time WEEREE 698,975 - 698,975 - 698,975
Over time R-BEHR - 9,231 9,231 1,167 10,398
External revenue (Note) MR (Hi2) 698,975 9,231 708,206 1,167 709,373
Operating profit/(loss) mERH/ (58) 104,277 (254) 104,023 (6,927) 97,096
Fair value losses on investment properties, net REWMEZAAERE FE - (37,241) (37,241) - (37,241)
Interest income FIEBMA 1,709 - 1,709 266 1,975
Other net gains/(losses) s/ (BR) 38 7,423 32 7,455 421 7,876
Finance costs BT (8,225) (877) (9,102) = (9,102)
Segmental results PEEE 105,184 (38,340) 66,844 (6,240) 60,604
Income tax Fifs Bt (36,140)
Profit for the year TEEET 24,464
Write-down of inventories, net WREs 38 (2,578) - (2,578) - (2,578)
Net realised and unrealised loss on trading securities BALEEEHRAER Y
BEE - - - (1) (1)
Impairment loss reversed on trade receivables BARNENRE 2 AERE 473 - 473 - 473
Impairment loss recognised on other receivables Hi BB 2 AEESE - - = (1,755) (1,755)
Depreciation it (26,171) (103) (26,274) (13) (26,287)
Segment assets AHEE 378,809 320,811 699,620 5,859 705,479
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAREHABRZEBEE 7,498
Total assets BEE 712,977
Additions to non-current segment assets BEBRERDHDEEZEM
during the reporting period 6,053 8,576 14,629 - 14,629
Segment liabilities PEEE 214,861 23,878 238,739 5,101 243,840
Income tax payable ERmEHR 13,159
Deferred tax liabilities EREHERE 14,010
Total liabilities BEE 271,009
Note: There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31st March Wi R E—E-—RE-A=-+—AIEEHETE
2025. HEEBHE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A FSERRBAEE

8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. NEPIRE (£8)
2024
“RopE
Sales of Property Segmental
watches leasing total Unallocated Total
BRHE BENE b FAR E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT TET TET TET TET

Disaggregated by timing of revenue recognition

Point in time 696,162 696,162 - 696,162
Over time - 8,29 8,295 946 9,241
External revenue (Note) oM (i) 696,162 8,295 704 4 946 705,403
Operating profit/(loss) JEEH/ (B8) 111,637 (1,149) 110,488 5,461) 105,027
Fair value losses on inve RENE 2 M EBEFE (31,731) - (31,731)
Interest income FIEWA 2,204 2,555
Other net (losses)/ga Eth (58) /I 15 (19 (179)
Finance costs B AR A (10,578) - (10,578)
Segmental res PHEE A 70,398 (5,304) \ 65,094
Income ta g (38,893)
Profit for 26,201
Reversa entories, net - 1,400
Net real 0ss on trading securities

8) @)
Impairm reversed on trade receivables

3 (251)
Impairme 1 other receivables TEALAERR - - (162) (162)
Depreciat (210) (29,806) (16) (29,822)

Segment as 349,728 755,845 762,700

Financial assets a
Deferred tax asset

7,487
2,418

772,605

Total assets

BEDRERD BEEZEM

Additions to non-current segmen

during the reporting period 18,627 10,322 - 28,949
Segment liabilities 260,330 5214 289,824
Income tax payable 15,139
Deferred tax liabilities 23,125
Total liabilities BaE 328,088
Note: There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31st March Bt RBE-T-_mE=F=+— AL FEHHIE

2024. DEBMEHEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Geographic information

The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the
Group’s revenue from external customers and (ii) the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and investment properties. The
geographical location of customers is referred to the location at
which the services were provided or the goods delivered. The
geographical locations of specific non-current assets are based
on the physical location of the assets.

AR (4])
KEmEEN

LTAONNEERABIINGER 2 W R(i)yAE B
ZHE MERREARREMEZLE R D
M- -BFEEHES2ZGRERBIEMEXZ
e - BFEERDEEILEHRREREEY
ERMIEE & -

Revenues from

external customers Non-current assets
RENBEFzBE FREBEE
2025 2024 2025 2024
—E-EHE e 123 —E-RF —EE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Mainland China B A 696,218 693,077 34,328 57,317
Hong Kong (place of domicile) &5 (REM) 12,100 10,957 189,810 228,333
Switzerland Wt 1,055 1,369 18,744 18,863
United Kingdom HE - - 111,343 106,154
709,373 705,403 354,225 410,667
Information about major customers FAREFEZEFEHR

For the year ended 31st March 2025 and 2024, no revenue from
a single external customer contributed 10% or more of the total
revenue of the Group.
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

9. PRt Aui iRl

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

BEAaEMENGR, GtA) R TEE:

(a) Finance costs (a) BFFERX7R
2025 2024
—E_RE —E-OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings RITHBEF S 7,179 8,260
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFNE 1,923 2,318
Total interest expenses on financial WIERAR B ABENSRE
liabilities not at fair value through BEMELENHNE X HARE
profit or loss 9,102 10,578
(b) Employee benefits expenses (including directors’ (b) REERETHMZ (OIFESEME)
emoluments)
2025 2024
—EB-REF —E_OF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits (including e LENHEMEF
directors’ fee and emoluments) (BEE=wRe M) 52,721 48,664
Retirement benefits scheme contribution RN AT EI K 3,694 3,637
56,415 52,301

HEH72024/2025
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ER 2R Blf 5
9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 9. [Riganiafl (&)
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BEEIDEFN G, GEA) L TEE : (8)

(Continued)

(c) Other items (c) Hfihag
2025 2024
—E-HEF —ZE U4
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Rental receivable from investment ®EYE R B
properties less direct outgoings of H¥# % 1H185,000/8 T
HK$185,000 (2024: HK$328,000) — = —pU4F : 328,000/8 7T) (9,046) (7,967)
Net exchange loss PE 5 E 18 F 5 1,037 678
Auditors’ remuneration 1Z ELAT B &
- Audit services —ZE AR 1,200 1,200
- Other services — H th iz 755 375 355
Depreciation e
- Owned property, plant and equipment —BE &Y s &G 5,702 8,016
- Right-of-use assets —FRAEEE 20,585 21,806
26,287 29,822
Write down/(reversal of write-down) of Mog, (BB FE
inventories 2,578 (1,400)
Impairment loss (reversed)/recognised B SRR (BE) R
on trade receivables BEE R (473) 251
Impairment loss recognised on other HibE B R 2 BEEE
receivables 1,755 162
Impairment loss recognised FTREESEERZRERRE
on right-of-use assets 3,036 -
Variable lease payments not included Rt 2R EABR R k2
in the measurement of lease liabilities AT AEE K 15,975 15,125
Cost of inventories recognised R ARZ 2 FEERA (K1:18)
as expenses (note 18) 476,865 471,038
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. EEMMEREaHMEAT
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EBME
The emoluments of each director for the years ended 31st REBEE_ZE_AFER-_E_NF=ZA=+—
March 2025 and 2024 are set out below: AEFEEBHNEEZMESHIIT -
2025
—E-RE
Employer’s
contribution
Allowances - to retirement
Directors’ Basic Discretionary and other benefit
fees salaries bonus benefits scheme Total
EER BHRER
=60 Exge  FRERA HitER SEEEHE @t

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET FET FET FAT FAET

Executive Directors BrE=E

Lam Kim Phung HeE 238 1,310 857 - - 2,405
Eav Guech Rosanna BE 238 1,367 579 - 18 2,202
Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan 13 238 4,319 1,984 - 18 6,559
714 6,996 3,420 - 36 11,166

Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTES
Lai Si Ming BEH 238 - - - - 238
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent T 238 - - - - 238
Kee Wah Sze REL 238 - - - - 238
714 - - - - 714
1,428 6,996 3,420 - 36 11,880
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

10. ESHERRSHEAL ()

(a) EEME ()

2024
ke 113

Employer’s

contribution

Allowances  to retirement

Directors’ Basic  Discretionary and other benefit
fees salaries bonus benefits scheme Total

ZHR RINER
EE Yok ix%e TEERL AR GhEEZEK @
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET FET FiET FET FEx

Executive Directors HTEE
Lam Kim Phung "& B 238 1,200 105 - - 1,543
Eav Guech Rosanna BE 238 1,124 219 - 18 1,599
Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan o137 238 4,091 494 - 18 4,841
714 6,415 818 - 36 7,983
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTEES

Lai Si Ming R 238 - - - - 238
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TER 238 - - - - 238
Kee Wah Sze fEL 238 - - - - 238
714 - - - - 714
1,428 6,415 818 - 36 8,697

The executive directors’ emoluments were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments were
for their services as directors of the Company.

Notes:

(i) There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31st
March 2025 and 2024.

(ii) No emolument was paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31st March
2025 and 2024.

(i)  The Company has not appointed Chief Executive, and the role

and function of the Chief Executive has been performed by the
executive directors.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. SEHERESHMEA T (E)
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Individuals with highest emoluments b) EeMEAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three AfimEHEALTH = (ZE_WF: =
(2024: three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed M)ESZNE R E10(@)H FE - LAz
in Note 10(a). The aggregate emoluments in respect of the (ZZTZMHE W) At zMe@sEenT :

other two (2024: two) individuals is as follows:

2025 2024
“E-RE —E_OF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Basic salaries, allowances and other BEXRF &  EZUREMER
emoluments 4,182 4,233
Performance related incentive payments RIBBE A 4,520 3,404
Employer’s contribution to retirement IR KA A FT &2 =R
benefit scheme 162 128
8,864 7,765
The emoluments of the remaining two (2024: two) individuals BRI (ZZEZWF - W) Zaie A+
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands: NFTINEE :
Number of individuals
A
2025 2024
—E-RHE —E-NF
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001,8 T — 1,500,000/ 7© = -
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001,8 T — 2,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$4,500,001 - HK$5,000,000 4,500,001/ 7t - 5,000,000/ 7T = -
HK$6,000,001 - HK$6,500,000 6,000,001/ 7t - 6,500,000/ 7T = 1
HK$6,500,001 — HK$7,000,000 6,500,001% 7t - 7,000,000/ 7T 1 -
2 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

11.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT 11. B EERNZREITH
OR LOSS
2025 2024
—E-HF —ENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current tax BVERT IR
PRC Corporate Income Tax PRI EREH
- Charge for the year — REEFREB 37,494 36,955
- Underprovision in prior year - BEFERETR 47 16
Withholding tax on dividend income REFEMBARBKREBAZ
from PRC subsidiaries A 5,296 4,912
42,837 41,883
Deferred tax EIET IR
Origination and reversal of temporary R =R E A D
differences (6,697) (2,990)
Income tax expense Fris X 36,140 38,893

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at the rate of 16.5% (2024: 16.5%). No Hong Kong Profits
Tax has been provided for in the financial statements for the years
ended 31st March 2025 and 2024 either because the Hong Kong
subsidiaries have accumulated tax losses brought forward which
exceeded the estimated assessable profits or the Hong Kong
subsidiaries sustained losses for taxation purpose.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years, except for
subsidiaries which are eligible as Small Low-profit Enterprise* (/)
A A 2). An entity eligible as a Small Low-profit Enterprise is
subject to preferential tax treatments up to 31st December 2027.
The annual taxable income of a Small Low-profit Enterprise which
is not more than RMB3,000,000, 75% of its taxable income is
not subject to EIT and the remaining 25% of its taxable income
is subject to EIT at a tax rate of 20%. During the year, two
subsidiaries (2024: two subsidiaries) are subject to the relevant
preferential tax treatments.

The subsidiaries in Switzerland are subject to Switzerland Profits
Tax at the rate of 16% (2024: 16%). No Switzerland Profits Tax
has been provided for the years ended 31st March 2025 and 2024
as the Group has no estimated assessable profits in Switzerland.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the British
Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in these
jurisdictions.

The subsidiary in the United States is subject to Federal Corporate
Income Tax at the rate of 21% (2024: 21%) and Maryland
Corporation Income Tax at the rate of 8.25% (2024: 8.25%). No
corporate income tax has been provided for the years ended 31st
March 2025 and 2024 as the subsidiary did not generate any
estimated assessable profits in the United States.

*

For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT 1. O IBEENZPhiSTHH (8)
OR LOSS (Continued)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting profit at MEHYHSHEMNIZERAMRAE 2 HER -
applicable tax rates:

2025 2024
—E-HEF —T_lmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Profit before taxation B B4 Al VA 60,604 65,094
Notional tax on profit before taxation, LA B AE AR E A
calculated at the tax rates applicable to B& 5 Bl @ Al 2 & 3= B 18
the countries concerned 23,192 23,562
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ERBE ETRENBRz I 2 MG E 3,549 7,219
Tax effect of non-taxable income R ETHRE 2 J\Zﬂiﬁgg (2,974) (5,579)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RWHER 2 HIEEE Y RS E 5,685 7,898
Tax effect of temporary RWHERZ B EER
difference not recognised BT E 2,119 381
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax losses ) F oK | A & TH 55 18 2 T 15 7 22 (1,237) -
Tax effect of temporary differences attributable & I M‘}% AlZAD /)E/ﬁﬁﬂ},%{ﬁ
to undistributed profits of PRC subsidiaries S EE BB E 5,806 5,412
Actual tax expense BERERES S 36,140 38,893
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ER 2R Blf 5
12. DIVIDENDS 12. B2
(a) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable (a) MEEEGZEMRASIFEARSE
to the year
2025 2024
—E-HEF —T_lmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Final dividend proposed after the end of the %5 HAoR 1% i 3 R 2 2 R AR &
reporting period of HK$0.02677 (2024: G EmA%0.02677 7T
HK$0.0348) per ordinary share (ZZ VU4 : 0.03487 L) 20,000 26,000
The distribution of the final dividend is subject to the R B R HARR BB IR AR B E B R R A
shareholders’ approvals at the forthcoming annual general FAGEMAEETIEER - RMEHKRES
meeting of the Company. The final dividend declared or IR BY 2 22 IR 25 A R B AR B0 A RS A R
proposed after the end of the reporting period have not been RAEBE -
recognised as liabilities at the end of the reporting period.
(b) Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable (b) BE—EHKFEERNAARFTEAZR
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the B REARDIENRIRN :
year:
2025 2024
—EHF —EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Final dividend in respect of the previous RFABIERIKS 2 E—1E
financial year, approved and paid during MBEE 2 KRR S
the year of HK$0.0348 (2024: HK$0.0469) HQ”?EHEO 034878 7T
per ordinary share — = P4 : 0.04697%F L) 26,000 35,040
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BIREIiH
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share has EREALBERBINERERBENARQREF
been based on earnings attributable to owners of the Company of B AL & F)24,465,000/8 7L (= F — O 4F -
HK$24,465,000 (2024: HK$26,202,000) and the weighted average 26,202,000;/87L) ° L‘/{&HAEW%??EI’WJD%EFi’:J%
number of 747,123,000 ordinary shares in issue during the year. BA%747,123,0000% 5+ &
Diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per share HRAARATIAMEEEHETMABSEHIZE
as the Company does not have any dilutive potential ordinary BTLREIE AR EEMETIREARNER
shares outstanding for both years. R e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 0% - I8 S 28
Ownership
interests in Other
land and properties
buildings leased for
held for own own use Furniture, Machinery
use carried carried fixtures and Leasehold and Motor  Construction
at cost at cost fittings improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
REATI R
EBRZ  REASIRE
T RETZ fERZ  BE-RE HENE BER
BEEES HtHEENX REE %8 R RE EEIR £
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET FET FET FAT FAT FET
31st March 2024 ZE-mEZAZ1-H
At 31st March 2023, net of RZZT-=%
accumulated depreciation =A=+—H
and impairment MR 2 MERRE 18,144 51,020 22 7171 2,986 1,268 2,077 82,688
Translation differences hEER (804) (2,422) - (342) (24) (59) (94) (3,745)
Additions NE - 15,475 - 550 362 - 2,257 18,644
Transfer HE - - - 4,240 - - (4,240) -
Depreciation charges REER (586) (21,220) " (6,296) (1,346) (367) - (29,822)
At 31st March 2024, net of R =Z -5
accumulated depreciaton =A=+—H:
and impairment MR HERAE 16,754 42,853 15 5,323 1,978 842 - 67,765
As 31st March 2024 RZTZME
=A=t+-AH
Cost AR 25,426 146,285 957 32,253 21,082 6,244 - 232,247
Accumulated depreciation 2T E RFE
and impairment (8,672) (103,432) (942) (26,930) (19,104) (5,402) - (164,482)
Carrying amount EEE 16,754 42,853 15 5,323 1,978 842 - 67,765
31st March 2025 —E-HF=fA=1-H
At 31st March 2024, net of R -ZT -4
accumulated depreciaton =A=1+—F "
and impairment M 2N ERAE 16,754 42,853 15 5,323 1,978 842 = 67,765
Translation differences REZH (90) (244) - (12) 40 (7 - (313)
Additions RE - 5,809 3 59 275 - - 6,146
Adjustment from lease HEEITRE
modification - (187) - - - - - (187)
Write off sy S = = (70) - - - (70)
Impairment loss recognised {f F{EEER-RZ
on right-of-use assets WEER - (3,036) - - - - - (3,036)
Depreciation charges FEER (581) (20,005) (8) (4,825) (610) (258) - (26,287)
At 31st March 2025, net of R=ZT-H%F
accumulated depreciation =H=+—H*
and impairment MR R4 & KA E 16,083 25,190 10 475 1,683 577 - 44,018
As 31st March 2025 R-B-RE
ZR=+-H
Cost A 25,326 77,261 960 29,576 21,666 6,213 - 161,002
Accumulated depreciation  Z:HITE MEE
and impairment (9,243) (52,071) (950) (29,101) (19,983) (5,636) - (116,984)
Carrying amount FHE 16,083 25,190 10 475 1,683 577 - 44,018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14, BZ - BBRBE (H)
Notes: Hiat
(a) Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight- () YZE - MERRHABHERTIFEAE
line basis at the following rates per annum: e :
Freehold land is not depreciated KA L TFHRITE
Leasehold land 2% or over the remaining terms Gish i) 2% IR TR A) 82 T F BR
of the leases, if shorter (AR ERB%E)
Buildings 2 - 4% or over the remaining gF 2 - 4% HIRELIHRT
lease period, if shorter FH (SR E ALE)
Furniture, fixtures and fittings 15 - 20% RE - BREREE 15-20%
Leasehold improvements 5-50% or over the remaining HEMERE 5-50%LMELHEAT
lease period, if shorter FH(UBREE BE)
Machinery and equipment 20 -50% 2SN 7R 20 - 50%
Motor vehicles 20% U 20%
(b) Ownership interests in land and buildings (b) LTHREFIHEBEER
The carrying amounts of ownership interests in land and T REFAEERROREERRE

buildings comprise:

2025 2024
—EB-RF —ZT-F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Leasehold land and buildings in B A 2 T B RAEFE
Mainland China 13,702 14,334
Freehold land and buildings in Switzerland R 2 K AFEL I RIEF 2,381 2,420
16,083 16,754
(c) Right-of-use assets (c) FHEEE
The analysis of the carrying amount of right-of-use assets by TRREEREEEERED 2 REED
class of underlying assets is as follows: MrEsmT
2025 2024
—EB-RE —E-F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt &E FET FHT
Ownership interests in leasehold land and RITERAYRSEE AMEE L
buildings held for own use, carried at HRAETF 2 AR - AN
depreciated cost, with lease term of: I (c)(i)
- 50 years or more - 50 kA E 13,702 14,334
Other properties leased for own use, RITERARTRREERZ
carried at depreciated cost HiAEmE (c)(ii) 25,190 42,853
38,892 57,187
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14. A% - 1828 R2%1H (88)
Notes: (Continued) e - (&)
(c) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (c) FERA#EE (&)

REZBRAZHEERXIAB Z2 &M

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases

recognised in profit or loss is as follows: D
2025 2024
—B-HE —ENE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Depreciation of right-of-use assets RIEBEERANEID 2 ERREENE ¢
by class of underlying assets:
Ownership interests in leasehold land HE LM RIEF . A
and buildings 482 487
Other properties leased for own use FHEBAZEMHEEY%E 20,005 21,220
20,487 21,707
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 9(a)) HEBEZF B (M) 1,923 2,318
Expense relating to short-term leases AR E AR 228 334
Variable lease payments not included in Rt ERE B ER R RZAZHEE MR
the measurement of lease liabilities 15,975 15,125
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets EREEE 2 RERE 3,036 -

Notes: Bat -
During the year ended 31st March 2025, additions to right-
of-use assets were approximately HK$5,809,000 (2024:
HK$15,475,000), which is related to the capitalised lease
payments payable under new tenancy agreements.

REZE-_T-_AF-A=-+—HIFE @
HHERSEBATRENERNMBAENREBZ
B REEE 2 N4 55,809,000/ T (=
— P04 : 15,475,000/ 7T) °

During the year ended 31st March 2025, the Group
entered into one lease agreement for extension of lease
term of existing leases of shops and therefore recognised
the adjustment from lease modification of approximately
HK$187,000.

REBEE-_Z_AF=-A=Z+—BLEE"
AEBFRERBA/EHALNNMAET L —
NHEEHE AUEREESCKARNA
187,000/ T ©

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is set out in Note 24.

HESGE 2SN HADTEHNH E24 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

(U]

(i)

(iii)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings
held for own use

The Group holds office buildings in the Mainland China
for its sales of watches business, where its facilities are
primarily located. The Group is the registered owner
of these property interests, including the whole or part
of undivided share in the underlying land. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire these property
interests from their previous registered owners, and
there are no ongoing payments to be made under the
terms of the land lease, other than payments based
on rateable values set by the relevant government
authorities. These payments vary from time to time and
are payable to the relevant government authorities.

Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its warehouses, retail stores and office
through tenancy agreements. The leases typically run
for an initial period of two to five years. Lease payments
are usually increased every one year to reflect market
rentals.

Extension options are included in a number of property
leases across the Group. These are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets
used in the Group’s operations. The extension options
held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor. Extension options are only included
in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be
extended.

The Group leased a number of retail stores which
contain variable lease payment terms that are based
on sales generated from the retail stores and minimum
annual lease payment terms that are fixed. These
payment terms are common in retail stores in the
Mainland China where the Group operates.

Impairment loss on right-of-use assets

As at 31st March 2025, the Group’s management
identified an underperforming retail store which
continued to operating at a loss and estimated the
recoverable amounts of the related right-of-use assets.
Based on value-in-use estimates, a full impairment loss
of HK$3,036,000 was recognised to reduce the carrying
amount of these right-of-use assets to HK$Nil.
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15.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. BEME
2025 2024
—EZHF —ZTE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

At fair value AREIHE

At the beginning of the year REH 338,596 361,550
Addition NE 8,483 10,305
Disposal & - (1,600)
Fair value losses, net NAEEE  FRE (37,241) (31,731)
Translation difference BMEETE 369 72
At the end of the year RER 310,207 338,596

As at 31 March 2025, the investment property with a carrying
amount of HK$79,593,000 (2024: HK$72,113,000) was under
construction. During the year ended 31 March 2025, capital
expenditure totalling HK$8,483,000 (2024: HK$10,305,000) were
incurred for its development.

The Group’s property interests held for rental income purposes
are measured using the fair value model and classified as
investment properties.

Investment properties are leased out under operating leases.
Lease terms generally range from two to six years (2024: two to
six years), with renewal options available upon expiry, subject to
renegotiation of terms. None of the leases includes variable lease
payments.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk arising from
the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the
functional currencies of the respective group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee or options for
lessees to purchase the properties at the end of lease terms.

HEH72024/2025

RZZT_RF=A=+—0 KAEEA79,593,000
Br (ZZ U4 : 72,113,000/ T) IR E M
FHREZERP - PEBE-_T-_A€=-A=+—A1
FEN BREZVENIENEABAIEHRA
8,483,000/ 7T (Z = — U : 10,305,000 7T) °

AEBBFEEHSWARENYERRDRAR
RERXGE  THBERREME -

HEMEAGEEHELH - HE BN T MFE
ANFE(ZE-WEFE : MFEERF) - FHRAER
BR - MABHANIGT - HEROXL A REAZ
HERK -

MNAEEESNEEERSBNRESHE
Eﬁ($‘§lﬂ3@ﬁ%§2#fﬂ ?HFFﬁFEE’W\\MJ—L

cHEANTEBSHHREERFRIAEAR
HEERIGIEE YRR RE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties

(i) Fair value hierarchy

15. R&ME (1§)

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technique as follows:

. Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at

the measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

Wiz -

(a)

REMENARABHE

(i) D EFEE

TRENAEENREMRLREEEE
st ENRENEARE - ZFEWED
BACE BB REEA)EE -1
AEFEBIFATH=EARERBR -
REBEZ A MEETDEMMRANE A
ENABREENEEN  KMEER
REFEHEMERBENER

E—AhE
F—RBE - ARFFEARER
FIEENEERERTSZAE

a8 B HRE -

BMRIhE
—HEE DU EREUEREE
HE—& RIKFEAEATRT
BRZEE THBRZEES
HT ISR M 2 8UF -

FZRIEE
AR ERZBUE -

AREFERES

AR BB EHE

NREFECRE

Fair value measurements as at
31st March 2025 categorised into
fair value hierarchy
R-ZBE-HEF=A=+—AH2
RREFESEEARELRE

Fair value
at
31st March
2025 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R=-—Z_RF
=A=+—8
ZARE F1BR FE2lBR EIBR
HKS$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
FHETT FHETT FHETT FHETT
Recurring fair value REMEAARME
measurement FTE
Investment properties: REWHE
- Hong Kong —B% 183,940 - - 183,940
- Switzerland -+ 14,938 - - 14,938
- United Kingdom — 111,329 - - 111,329
310,207 - - 310,207
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15.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

(i

HEH72024/2025

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

R §5 ER R B 5F

15. R&ME (1§)

(a)

REMENARESE ()

(i

DA ERE ()

Fair value measurements as at

31st March 2024 categorised into

fair value hierarchy

RZZE_ME=A=+—HZ
DREFEDHEERARERE
Fair value
at
31st March
2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-ZT_F
=A=+—H
PA/N ] F1ER E2EM EIEMR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F T FET FHET
Recurring fair value REEAARE
measurement sTE
Investment properties: KB
- Hong Kong — BB 217,750 - - 217,750
- Switzerland —mt 14,699 - - 14,699
— United Kingdom — K= 106,147 - - 106,147
338,596 - - 338,596
During the years ended 31st March 2025 and 2024, REBEE_E_REKE_ZT_NE=H4
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or =+— E!ﬁij}; CHE—HE B
transfers into or out of Level 3 of fair value hierarchy. IR A EER - JRE T ()

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31st March 2025 and 2024. The valuations
of investment properties located in (i) Hong Kong;
(i) Switzerland; and (iii) United Kingdom as at 31st
March 2025 and 2024 were carried out by Cushman
& Wakefield Limited and Royson Valuation Advisory
Limited respectively, the firm of independent
professional qualified valuers with recent experience in
the location and category of properties being valued.
The Group’s management has discussion with the
valuers on the valuation and reviewed all major inputs
and assumptions, and assessing the reasonableness
of the valuation results performed by the valuers for
financial reporting purposes when the valuation is
performed at each interim and annual reporting date.

AREMAR L ERBE=ERARAESE
ZEGREE - ARENRRREALE
B2 R s R
88 -

AREENMEREMECR T _HF
E_Z-NE=A=+—RETEMH-
RZBE-RFR-ZZFZNF=A=+—
H - GLAOES ()BT Ri)EE >
BEMEGEEIEDIRBUIEEEE
B EMEE2TAR A7) & E R TG
BAARAFET ZFREMMITEE
iy 4 2 49 P 7 30 B RN 4R B1 19 BT H A
B ASEEEERGEMNBEES
B UEMAEEEHASERRE
UERERHRFEERSE AETHE
g A HERM AT SRS B mIER
ZHEERZAEM -
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. 138 1%E (8)
(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued) (a) BREMENARESS (8)
() Fair value hierarchy (Continued) () DA EFE(E)
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest REFTENARER  DENSES R
and best use of the properties is their current use. RERBRREENAR -
The Group did not change any valuation techniques in AEBRETFE=EBR AL ERILE
determining the Level 8 fair valuves. & BENE(HERE
(i) Valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value (i) 2R EREE=FERLIEFEFE
measurements under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy JH B 12 B BT B A B 1
Relationship of
Range or unobservable
Valuation Key weighted inputs to
techniques unobservable inputs average fair value
gBEH TABREE
1 {E 5 i TEFTBEZEE ik B HARERE
Investment properties Market comparison ~ Premium/(discount) 2025: (22)% to 10% The higher
located in Hong Kong approach to transaction price (2024: (1 6)% to 1%) the premium to
NRBBZIREME W5 L BA (to reflect location, —E-RE: the transaction
age and maintenance) (22)%%10%  price, the higher
R P ERZIGE/ (reE) (ZZ % : the fair value
(Amibd  BRKRRE) 10)%E1%) XHERZEE
BE RAEDS
Investment properties Market comparison  Premium/(discount) 2025: (23)% to 2% The higher
located in Switzerland approach to transaction price (2024: (1 0)% to 34%) the premium to
Nt 2 EME Thig t BOE (to reflect location, —E-REF: the transaction
age and maintenance) (23)%%2%  price, the higher
RPER2RE/(E) (ZZF-mF: the fair value
(CAR B3 B 1 R %) (10%%34%) RHERZEE

P = P =
e ARERS

122| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited 70 o R SR AR EI A PR A



15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. 128 MZE (8)
(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued) (a) BREMENARESS (8)

(i) Valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value (i) AN ELEE=ZERANAEFEDE
measurements under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy JH 3 B 71T R B A 2 (48)
(Continued)

Relationship of
Range or unobservable
Valuation Key weighted inputs to
techniques unobservable inputs average fair value
gEH TABEEE
1 B 5 i TEFTBEZEE ik B HARERE
Investment properties Market comparison  Premium/(discount) to 2025: (14)% to 17% The higher
located in United approach transaction price (to (2024: (21)% to (10)%) the premium to
Kingdom mis Lt 8A reflect location, age and —E-RF: the transaction
NRERZIREWE maintenance) (14)%ZE17%  price, the higher
RPERZHEE/ () (—T—meF the fair value
(AR B2 - 2R RIRE) RN%ZE0%) RFHERZEE
Am ARERS
Residual method Budgeted construction 2025: The higher the
BEE costs to be incurred GBP5.5 million budgeted
BTEEZBEERERA (2024: construction
GBP5.2 million) costs to be
—EREF: incurred,
5,500,000 the lower
(ZZ=mF: the fair value
5,200,000 %) H%%EEZ?E%*
TE%NE_E
Anticipated developer’s 2025: 15% The higher the
profit margin (2024: 15%) anticipated
TEEIE R B A “E-AF 15% developer’s
(ZZZME15%) profit margins,
the lower the fair
value
EHEREMNED
ERAV EM
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

(i) Valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
(Continued)

The valuations of completed investment properties
located in Hong Kong, Switzerland and United Kingdom
were based on market comparison approach. Market
comparison approach is by reference to recent sales
price of comparable properties on a price per square
feet or meter basis, adjusted for a premium or discount
specific to the quality of the Group’s properties
compared to the recent sales. Higher premium for
higher quality properties will result in a higher fair value
measurement.

The valuation of investment properties under
development located in United Kingdom was based on
residual method. The residual method is a hybrid of the
market approach, the income approach and the cost
approach, and which is based on the completed “gross
development value” and the deduction of development
costs and the developer’s return to arrive at the residual
value of the development property.

The fair value losses on investment properties
amounting to approximately HK$37,241,000 (2024:
HK$31,731,000) are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

(b) At 31st March 2025, certain investment properties of
approximately HK$288,509,000 (2024: HK$316,497,000)
were pledged as securities for bank loans as detailed in Note
25.
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15. R&ME (1§)

(a)

(b)

BREMENARAETE (])

(i)

AR EREE=ZERAAEFTEFE
FB 8 15 B R A B ()

UREE HEIRABZEEKRKERE
WEZEETIERT S L EEET -
MG EATIRSEA R B ER
BEAREFHAREBEEEFE L
HEE HERAKBEMELEZ R
BT E(RAMEER P LR

){’Etljaﬂ% 1h¢%¥%fif&/ﬁ B )
mfm BYFAEBRBZAREDN
e e

IR ERFLEMERAR R
EHE - RIESEARATSEE - ks
ERKAE - TIRBE R % RE
1B ] FNRR 38 R BN T 38 R 78 [0 3RUA 1S 1
BERWERZASBEE-

HEWEZ AR EEBESBELNA
37,241,000 ot (Z T W & :
31,731,000/ 7T) R 4r & 1B 7 5k W 18

=7
a °

R—_Z-_AF=A=+—H BEELAE
288,509,000/ 7T (—Z — P4 : 316,497,000
BT ME TIREMERERTEERR - &
B H P H 25 o

F‘H:i N

=
e
i



16. SUBSIDIARIES 16. B Sl
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st March UTRINNVN ZZE-_RAFE=ZA=1+—BFENBR
2025: eI
Place of
incorporation or Paid up Proportion of
establishment issued ordinary issued share capital/
or registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary business registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
A B 3L 3 A ST BENCRTEE AARRBERTRE
WEAR AR HETHYLEh BA/FREL Bk e At ] TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# i
AC (Overseas) Limited British Virgin Islands HK$10,000 100% - Investment holding
KERZES 10,0003 7T 100% - REER
Juvenia Montres S.A. Switzerland SFr.1,875,000 - 100% Assembling and
T 1,875,000% L% £ marketing of gold and
jewellery watches
- 100% ERERECHEREREREK
BREEW(LEE)ES The People’s Republic RMB128,403,300 - 100% Retail and trading
BERAT of China* of watch
REARLME  128,403,300T AR - 100% BHRTERES
BEESUER)ERAR The People’s Republic RMB9,715,200 - 100% Retail and trading
of China* of watch
HEARAME" 9,715,20070 A R - 100% BRTERES
Time City (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 3,000,000 shares - 100% Watch trading
BRERA(BE)BRAF BB 3,000,000 - 100% BRES
Juvenia (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong 5,000,000 shares - 100% Brand development and
Limited watch trading
B2 (FE)BRAA 5t 5,000,000 - 100% MRERREERES
Accord Watch & Jewellery Hong Kong 3,500,100 shares - 100% Brand development and
(International) Limited watch trading
Ve EEHE (ER)BRAR B 3,500,1008% - 100% REERLERRS
Wakmann Watch (International) Hong Kong 20,000,000 shares - 100% - Brand development and
Company Limited watch trading
R EBRERAF £ 20,000,000/ - 100% mRERRERES
Wakmann Watch (Shanghai) The People’s Republic RMB4,000,000 - 100% Watch trading
Trading Limited of China*
RA(L8) EREHERRA HEARSERME 4,000,00070 A K% - 100% EHRES
Asia Commercial Property British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Property holding and
Holdings Limited Hong Kong investment
KERLHE /B E 100% - NERBERRE
The Eav’s Group Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% - Investment holding
BEEHAEEERAA Bk 2B 100% - REZR
The Eav’s Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Property development
and investment
BEHERARAA B 2B - 100% MEEEREZE
* Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a * REPFEAREMBEZAMBIINEBELE -
wholly foreign-owned enterprise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

17. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER r"'"ﬁ‘_fﬁ—l'AEfﬂ_leﬁl& s /If

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR NABEFANBEZE2MEE

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2025 2024
—E-EHF —TZNEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ZA A BT AEBRZERMEE
- Club debentures (Note (i)) —ZFTEH (MEE3) 7,498 7,487
Equity instruments at fair value through other BAREFAEMEERZZ
comprehensive income =T A
— unlisted equity securities (Note (ii)) —JE E R B H (M) 3,025 3,043
10,523 10,530

Notes: B 5

(i)  The fair value of club debentures in Hong Kong has been determined () BEEMBFZAREN2R_-_FHHLCERE
by reference to the bid price quoted in the second hand market. METE -

(i)  Unlisted equity securities in the United States represented (i) EEE LT RFFHIE A EPikesville Self
investments in Pikesville Self Storage, LLC that were strategic in Storage, LLCE’]&Q BREMRERE - MO BEA
nature and was therefore classified as financial assets at fair value BAREFAEMEEANZZEREE -
through other comprehensive income.

18. INVENTORIES 18. &8
2025 2024
—E-HF —TWF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Watches 5 8

Raw materials R4 25,746 31,759

Finished goods SR 75,104 73,884

100,850 105,643
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18. INVENTORIES (Continued) 18. F& (&)
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an BRAMZWIAGEERR I FESENDIN
expense and included in the consolidated statement of profit or mr
loss is as follows:
2025 2024
—E-EHF —EHEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Carrying amount of inventories sold HEFEZERHEE 474,287 472,438
Write-down of inventories FE MR 5,448 7,219
Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 & HUR B = (2,870) (8,619)
Amount of inventories recognised as an expense R AR EFES%E 476,865 471,038
The reversal of inventory write-downs was recognised due to an RHEBE RIFES SN &R FEE M -
increase in the estimated net realisable value, resulting from a Ejﬂ;ﬁﬁ T IFEMUREE o
shift in consumer preferences.
All of the inventories are expected to be recovered within one FiEFEEHEN—FRUE -
year.
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. SSRHEhEUERR
2025 2024
—E_RE T E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance B Z MR - MR EEEE
- Third parties = HE =5 52,216 66,351
- Related parties — &N A 3,987 4,223
56,203 70,574
Other receivables, net of loss allowance HMEWAR - HREBERE
- Third parties —£=7 1,960 3,429
- Related parties — BE AT - 603
1,960 4,032
Deposits and prepayments %o KB HE 9,895 8,091
68,058 82,697
Analysed as: DR
Non-current ERB 3,134 4,306
Current Viok) 64,924 78,391
68,058 82,697
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87t ¥5 ¥R 2R i 5
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. S5 HbEUETR (5)
Aging analysis RE DR
The Group allows credit period of up to 180 days to its customers. AEBSRTERZHNPE180H 22EH - REE
The aging analysis of the trade receivables at the end of the HiR - BIBBZEAMSMERNBREEEEZZ S EK
reporting period based on invoice date and net of loss allowance, BERZERESTTWOT ¢
is as follows:
2025 2024
—E-RE —E_OF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Up to 90 days ENE#AZ=90 H 52,344 66,389
91 to 180 days 91%E180H - 2
181 to 365 days 181£2365H 42 14
Over 365 days 365H LA £ 3,817 4,169
56,203 70,574
20. TRADING SECURITIES 20. BHHEES
2025 2024
—EZHE —EMF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REBLMERES  HARE
at fair value 15 16
The fair value of listed equity securities is based on their closing THEREFHEZ AABUREHAREWHTZEA
bid price at the end of the reporting period. BAEER-
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21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW BERRERERREMERSRSER
INFORMATION
Cash and bank balances comprise: RERRTEHREIE :
2025 2024
—E_RE —TZNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Short-term bank deposit, with maturity over 3 months 2| B = @ A 2 %2 £
RITF K 5,338 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBREEED 173,968 164,940
Total cash and bank balances Re RRITHERETE 179,306 164,940
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank RZTE_AF=-A=+—AFXKSETEHFEZ
and on hand of approximately RMB148,693,000 (equivalent HekRecEEVERRBEROTARFERSOA
to approximately HK$159,166,000) held in the PRC as at 31st 148,693,000 A £ # (#H %5 74 #9159,166,000/%
March 2025 (2024: RMB131,905,000 (equivalent to approximately J0) (ZZ P4 : 131,905,000 A R (FHER
HK$142,739,000)). The conversion of RMB denominated balance #9142,739,000 L)) - AR ERHBEKRSE
into foreign currencies and the remittance of such foreign- HNE R ZENEBRRITERSERERFRZE
currency denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC = 2| rh B ISR AR AR A B SME & IR 51 K AR Bl
are subject to the relevant foreign exchange control rules and RE -
regulations promulgated by the PRC government.
During the year, cash at banks carry interest at market rates FR - RBIT2REEMSANEAFE  HEN
which range from 0.1% to 2.025% (2024: 0.001% to 2.025%) per TRFEBE01%E2.025% 2 8 (= F — /4 :
annum. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks 0.001%%2.025%) ° RITAEERF A FIL I MR iE
with no recent history of default. W sr 2 EEBEWRT -
22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22, BSRHMERKR
2025 2024
—E_RHE —ZE_puFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables B 5T BR R 2,229 2,462
Other payables and accrued charges HthENRRRETER 25,919 23,735
Rental received in advance TE U & 2,861 2,865
Deposits received 2z e 976 872
Other tax payable E b fE B IR 45,929 53,107
77,914 83,041
Analysed as: DA
Non-current FERE 2,704 2,659
Current mE 75,210 80,382
77,914 83,041
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

22.

23.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on
demand.

22. BAREMERIRR (8)

Fﬁ“ﬁi‘ﬁ%&Eﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁéﬁéfiﬁ\]%”ﬁiﬂﬁ
BERWA - imEREER

The aging analysis of trade payables based on date of receipt of E’Qi&iﬁﬁﬂi RBEWEIE R A2 E 5 EMNK
goods as at the end of the reporting period is as follows: KRBT -
2025 2024
—T-HF ZTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Up to 90 days BIEAZE90R 1,157 1,275
91 to 180 days 91£180H = -
181 to 365 days 181%=365H - -
Over 365 days 365H A E 1,072 1,187
2,229 2,462
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23. 8HhafE
2025 2024
—E-RE —TZNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Contract liabilities on sales of watches EIREEZAHNEE 436 1,127

All of the contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as
income within one year.

During the year ended 31st March 2025, revenue recognised in
current year of HK$Nil (2024: HK$Nil) was included in the contract
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year.

Contract liabilities represent advance receipts from customers
for the sales of watches, which are recognised as revenue upon
satisfaction of related performance obligations. The decrease in
contract liabilities during the year ended 31st March 2025 reflect
the write-off of long-outstanding for which delivery of goods is no
longer required.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

24. LEASE LIABILITIES 24.

T
2025 2024
Sl S —E_NEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FrET
Within 1 year —FR 17,368 20,955
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFRA 13,802 25,861
31,170 46,816
25. BANK LOANS 25. T8
2025 2024
—E-HHF —EZNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank loans, secured RITEE - BER 134,320 158,840
As at 31st March 2025 and 2024, the bank loans were due for RZE-RFER-_ZTZNF=A EWL*EI CHRAT
repayment within one year or on demand. BER—FANEEBRIEEREE
During the years ended 31st March 2025 and 2024, the Group Bz Z-_hafk-_FT-_N&F=AF=+—H81t
complied all the financial covenants imposed by the banks. FEEHE AEBEDESTRTIRENMETER
Management expects the Group will comply the financial o EREEY  AEEBRIREHEEZ12(8 8
covenants under the relevant loan agreements within 12 months NETHBEERER P IERAE
after the reporting period.
The bank loans are carried at amortised cost. RITIEEIRBIHEN AT
The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contractual AEBZRITEEERAEX (ﬁifi’\\ &K RIE)
interest rates) on the Group’s bank loans ranged from 5.23% to #EN T REB523%%5.74% (Z T Y F -
5.74% (2024: 6.22% to 6.73%) per annum. 6.22%%6.73% ) 155 °
As at 31st March 2025 and 2024, the secured bank loans were R_ZB-RFER_FT-_NF=A=+—H &
secured by (i) pledged of assets as disclosed in Note 31, (ii) FHIETTEE AT ENEEET - (i)
corporate guarantees given by the Company, (iii) subordination BEARBRMEZ AAER - (i)BARE 2 — R
of the payables to the group companies owed by a subsidiary of BRG] (EAEFERAN) REBRB 2 REERS
the Company as the loan borrower and (iv) assignment of rental FER(VBE TREVEESWANSRIEAE
income from certain investment properties. bl
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26. DEFERRED TAX

(a)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

26. IEIEFHIE

(a)

(i)  Movement of each component of deferred tax assets (i)

and liabilities

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as

CRRAZBEERAEERGIS *

BERBEERARZ EMABHZ
20
FRREA BB B R RIEE

BEEE,/(BF) cENBHREE
T -

follows:
Revaluation Undistributed
of Accelerated tax profits of PRC Write-down
Deferred tax arising from: DFEEEEZBERE properties depreciation Tax losses subsidiaries  of inventories Total
S 5 HEKEAR
EfifsE i HEESR AR RER HAkE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT 77 T4 AT 7T AT
At 1st April 2023 R-Z2-=FRmA-R (13,367) - 309 (13,000) 2,361 (23,697)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss ~ 3f A/ (1) 2% & 3,490 - - (500) - 2,990
At 31st March 2024 RZZ-mE=A=1-H (9.877) - 309 (13,500) 2,361 (20,707)
At 1st April 2024 RZZ-NMEMA-R (9,877) = 309 (13,500) 2,361 (20,707)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss & A/ (1) 285 9,877 (1,287) 928 (510) (2,361) 6,607
At 31st March 2025 RZFAF-A=1-H - (1,237) 1,287 (14,010) - (14,010)
(i) For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets (i) BLINHE B EH FEEFIEELERE
and liabilities have been offset in the consolidated EERZEASBER L FERLD o AT
statement of financial position. The following is an BRI EE RS YK EFEAE
analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for IFAEBR 2 T ¢
financial reporting purposes:
2025 2024
—E-hF —ET W
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Net deferred tax assets recognised in RERE B AR 0 R W sR A
the consolidated statement of RERIBE EFE
financial position - 2,418
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in R4 & B R &AL
the consolidated statement of RER BB EFE
financial position (14,010) (23,125)
(14,010) (20,707)
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26. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities not recognised

As at 31 March 2025, the Group has tax losses arising in
Hong Kong totalling approximately HK$686,120,000 (2024:
HK$647,331,000) which primarily originated prior to the
capital restructuring in 1997. These losses are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the respective
companies in which the losses were incurred. No deferred
tax assets have been recognised in respect of these tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future taxable profit
streams. Under the current tax legislation, these tax losses
do not expire.

At 31 March 2025, tax losses of approximately HK$3,325,000
(2024: HK$2,850,000) arising in the PRC are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits and may be carried
forward for a period of five years in accordance with the
PRC Corporate Income Tax requirements. Tax losses of
approximately HK$22,478,000 (2024: HK$27,072,000) arising
in Switzerland are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits and may be carried forward for a period of
seven years under Switzerland Profits Tax regulations. No
deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of these
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future taxable profit
streams.

Withholding tax

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which took
effect from 1st January 2008, a 5% or 10% withholding
tax was levied on dividends declared to foreign enterprise
investors from the PRC effective from 1st January 2008. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction
of the foreign enterprise investors. On 22nd February 2008,
Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by the PRC tax
authorities to specify that dividends declared and remitted
out of the PRC from the retained earnings as at 31st
December 2007 determined based on the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations are exempted from the withholding
tax. As at 31st March 2025, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the subsidiaries amounted
to approximately HK$234,433,000 (2024: HK$216,898,000)
and deferred tax liabilities of approximately HK$14,010,000
(2024: HK$13,500,000) has been recognised based on the
expected dividends to be distributed in the foreseeable
future.

HEH72024/2025

R §5 ER R B 5F

26. IEIETHIA (45)

(b)

(c)

RRAZEEHBESERGR
R-Z-_RE=ZA=+—R0 A£EBEE
BEEZHIEEES X4 5686,120, ooo/%s
7T (ZZ — P4 : 647,331,000/ 7T) -
R—hhtERASARMEL ﬂﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁ@ﬁ
BREELNDTIRKIERFEF - AR KR
JERBUE AR TN A T8 - M E R SR
BEERRECHBELE - BRIBRTRBEE
Bl HEBBET A -

%:§:£$5ﬁ5+*5'ﬁﬁ¢ﬁﬁ¥

Rz Bk RABEEZHEERY
8,325,000/ 7t (== — 9 4 : 2,850, ooo/%
JL) v Al BRI R R ERR TR - WA 4
ERF o RIBIHLFER B WnﬁtF
47 R E B #922,478,0008 T (- = — 1
F 1 27,072,000/ 7T) + A BRI 4E oK 2K
ABRA - WA LA F - ARRRERT
AT A Al BT MW ERZEHAEEER
HRELEHBEE -

Fai0i

REA-ZFZENF A -BRERNTE
EEMREHE  RRMECEREETIRR
B B ik B EKE % 10% TR ME - B =
ZZNEF-A-—HBER WP EEINE
TCEREEMBRZERZEEARBE
BB ERERARIGHR - N —-F
ENF_RA-+ B BB BEEREM

g Fi(2008)15% - EE —ETLF+ A
=+t —HEORBENE /f&&EﬁqﬂliﬁM\
2R EBBHETERBERERNE

AIERBETEHR R _E-_AF=A= +—
B BEMBARAD RGN ZEEME
X8 #) /234,433,0008 7T (=T — (0 4F :
216,898,000/ L) *+ MIRIBZTEH B R AT &
ARDEZBEEHRZELEHBEEEN A
14,010,000/%8 T (== — /U 4 : 13,500,000
HBIL) °
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B 5 ER 2R Blf 5
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BBk
Nominal
value per Number of
share shares Amount
SREE RHEAR ]
HK$ ‘000 HK$’000
BT FR FET
Authorised:
At 31st March 2024, 1st Apri R-_E_PNF=/F=+—H
March 2025 —E-NEMA—BE
—E-_RAF=ZA=+—H 500,000
Issued and full
At 31st March 2024 and 31st
March 202
747,123 149,424
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF 28. RSB IRENERELEEE)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) EARFHARRE
2025 2024
—E-RHE —E_F
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Fff 53 FET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN s 234,987 237,448
Current assets REEE
Other receivables ot JE U AR SR 318 284
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREFEEY 768 909
1,086 1,193
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTBE A B 5 E 28,873 21,934
Other payables LA JE S AR 5K 3,933 4,059
32,806 25,993
Net current liabilities mEAEFEH (31,720) (24,800)
Total assets less current liabilities ®#EERABHAERE 203,267 212,648
Net assets EEFE 203,267 212,648
Capital and reserves EAXR B
Share capital A% 2 27 149,424 149,424
Reserves s 28(b) 53,843 63,224
Total equity attributable FEREAQATFEFA
to owners of the Company Z AR 203,267 212,648

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th June 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

RZEZRFEASAZ

Eav Feng Ming, Jonathan

TARAEEZSRBEEETE THTHEEREREE

Eav Guech Rosanna

5% 87 BE
Director Director
EEa 5E

HEH72024/2025
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R #5 ¥R R B 5F

28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF 28. mMACIMIFEIRINEREIBEE (8)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Movement of reserves of the Company (b) RATFFKEERS

The change in the reserves of the Company during the years

ended 31st March 2025 and 2024 are as follows:

REBEE-_E_RAFRER-_ZE-_NE=A=+—
BIEFEBMAZARRRKELESNT :

Capital
Share redemption Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus profits Total
RHEE BXABEERE 0N REER @t
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET THET FET
At 1st April 2023 RZBE-=FNA—H - 7,263 10,734 43,908 61,905
Profit for the year REEHF - - - 36,359 36,359
Other comprehensive income Hip 2@z - - _ _ _
Total comprehensive income AEEZANGEE
for the year - - - 36,359 36,359
Transaction with owners BREAZRS
Final dividend approved E#ERSZF 2R
and paid (Note 12(b)) B8 (BiE12(b)) - - - (35,040) (35,040)
At 31st March 2024 R-F-_NF
ERET=H - 7,263 10,734 45,227 63,224
At 1st April 2024 R-Z-_NEMA-A - 7,263 10,734 45,227 63,224
Profit for the year REEER - - - 16,619 16,619
Other comprehensive income ~ HfiZ2E i - - - - -
Total comprehensive income  AFEZHKFZLE
for the year - - - 16,619 16,619
Transaction with owners BEFAZRS
Final dividend approved EHERIHZRE
and paid (Note 12(b)) B & (HfaF12(b)) - - - (26,000) (26,000)
At 31st March 2025 R-EZRF
=B=+-H - 7,263 10,734 35,846 53,843
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) RiEZzMHERBMN
() Revaluation reserve () EFEE

The revaluation reserve has been set up and is EERERAET D HEEREMEND
YMEBBFEEMEL - YIRIEWFE2(e)
FrEBEEAELtREFNS TR

BRI o

dealt with the revaluation on properties reclassified
to investment properties in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for leasehold land and
buildings in Note 2(e).

jit o P S SR B A R A )
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28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

HEH72024/2025

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(v).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve was set up upon debt restructuring
which will be used for the purpose of repurchase of
issued and fully paid ordinary share capital.

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve was set up on
repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own
shares.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
amount transferred from the capital account due to
the capital reduction effective on 28th March 2007.
The balance of contributed surplus account may be
utilised in the future in accordance with the Bye-Laws
and the Companies Act, including distribution to the
shareholders subject to compliance with the relevant
statutory requirements on making distributions in the
Companies Act.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling)
comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of
equity investments designated at FVOCI under HKFRS
9 that are held at the end of the reporting period (see
Note 2(d)).

Distributability of reserves

In accordance with Section 40 of the Companies
Act, the share premium account of the Company is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

At 31st March 2025, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to owners of the Company was
HK$46,580,000 (2024: HK$55,961,000).

R §5 ER R B 5F

(c) RifezMERBMN (B)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(B G

B EEEERE BN EBRTBRE
EEANMAELEZME ZHBERE
B FE2(v) P Bk B & R BOR BRI

BAFBEREHEEARRY  BAR
Boo Tk EmkA -

BB

AAMEHEABLDREEAATA
BRIDMER T -

A E

AR B 2 BN B 1R R ORR B AN T
ZETAF=A B AR E R
BERARZ £ o BABRKZ AR
RABRBEARNMAAEREDEEHA -
BRERBREELDIE - ERMERBR
NABTRAERRDIKAETERE ©

REEG# 1

REBR[FEE (TS BRNERE
HIRFERBEE BV REERFW
BEREAAEFARMEEREDN
REREARBERIFED (RN
2(d)) °

B (% 55 BD e 1

RIBE R BDEF40ME - A2 EZ K inE
B BR AT LA R AL A AR 00 2 = 3 B 7 A
NAPRER ©

RZE-_RAF=ZA=Z+—8 7t
APBFARBFTEAZHEERSE
#46,580,000/8 C (ZZF — 4 & :
55,961,0008 7T) °
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R #5 ¥R R B 5F

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk). The Group is
also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity
investments in other entities. These risks are limited by
the Group’s financial management policies and practices
described below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and the Group’s
credit risk primarily arises from deposits at banks and
trade and other receivables.

Cash at banks are placed with licensed financial
institutions with high credit ratings. The Group monitors
the exposure to each single financial institution.

For trade and other receivables, credit checks are
part of the normal operating process and stringent
monitoring procedures are in place to deal with overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amounts of trade and other receivables at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment allowance.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

29.

o 35 @ R E 12 (£8)
(a) HMIHEEBREZE (E)

() Credit risk (Continued) (i) FEERE (&)
The following table provides information about the TRV EBASE@RAEERR
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade FESREVEZRNEHREEBBER
receivables:
2025
—E-RHE
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
HHEEEX IREAE BEEE
% HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current (not past due) BIER (R H]) 0.74% 52,320 389
Less than 90 days past due #1 5/> 1R90K 0.72% 416 3
91-180 days past due #1E1915180K 0% - -
Over 180 days past due 161 2@ B 180K 60.1% 9,689 5,830
62,425 6,222
2024
T UF
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHEEEX REAE B
% HK$’000 HK$’000
THBT FHET
Current (not past due) BIER (k@ H) 0.78% 66,844 520
Less than 90 days past due i 53 > 90k 0% 65 -
91-180 days past due #HI91E180K 33.33% 3 1
Over 180 days past due 1 H B B 180K 59.43% 10,310 6,127
77,222 6,648
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss EHEEBERDENBE=ZFNERE
experience over the past three years. These rates BREEBEH - WZEN R ETHEL
are adjusted to reflect differences between economic F2 Bl Ui 5 R S R BR R B A B AR OR
conditions during the period over which the historical I8 50 2 7 £ [ 5 FiE Y Fh T8 T8 B B] {5 AR
data has been collected, current conditions and the FHBRE ZAELCERANEEZHE
Group’s view of forward-looking economic conditions HMERE-
over the expected lives of the receivables.
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W FSERRBAE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i

(i)

29. MFEEIREIR (18)
(a) WMHEREE (F)

Credit risk (Continued) (i) 1EEEE (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of FRNEHESENIERZEERER
trade receivables during the year is as follows: FEE -
2025 2024
—E_RE —E_OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Balance at 1st April HRIUA— B2z &% 6,648 6,436
Translation differences ME = 47 (39)
Impairment losses (reversed)/recognised FERRERE (BE) R
during the year (473) 251
Balance at 31st March R=ZA=Z+—BH 2% 6,222 6,648
Other receivables H t fE W R X
For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the HHEMEKREZRIZEMS * AR A
Company make periodic individual assessment on the EERBBTAEDE  BELE U
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based FLESEBEREMNAEEERNT
on historical settlement records, past experience, and ELTFEEREEMEKRERRIZS
also quantitative and qualitative information that is 2 Al Yq 38 E 4B E B @A B FEfE o AN
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information. NAIEERE  BVIAHERAR %%
The directors of the Company believe that there are no HENEERMITEBEELE N LA
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since AEBEREI2(E A EHEESBIR
initial recognition and the Group provided impairment REEE RZE_AF=A=+—
based on 12-month ECLs. As at 31st March 2025, the H - EMmERBEZOEBERES L
aggregate loss allowance for other receivables was % 54,595,000/ 7T (—F — Y4 -
approximately HK$4,595,000 (2024: HK$2,840,000). 2,840,000/ L) °
Liquidity risk (i) TEBEZER

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

140 | Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

MBE S R RSB EERETE
HrMBEEzRAR KNEEZHE
AREPEREBRREHRDHESLH
RREFHRERNZAEN  ARRE
EREARCHEENETIZSRHEE
EHERHERAZES  AENHEEH
EBEHZRBHESHFLK -

jit o P S SR B A R A )



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(i)

R §5 ER R B 5F

o B IR E IR (4])

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MIFERMEBERE(4)
Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) HEEZEE ()
The following table details the remaining contractual T%ﬁ$%l§$téﬁﬂﬁ1iﬁ\$&iﬁﬁ
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the RZHBTEHIEA - ?’]ﬂiﬁﬁfﬁ
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on NWERTE (BIEUES qﬂﬁ_p (=
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest WFE - BN REB R ZIRTA =R
payments computed using contractual rates or, if SFE 2 BT )&ZJSEI—JQEﬁ;'%%ﬁ
floating, based on rates current at the end of the Mz xR BETE
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.
Specifically, for loans which contain a repayment on LHEHE BESRERAZENE
demand clause which can be exercised at the creditor’s T2 RERKEREERZ BT
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow AMBRERERAHERMNK (EMrﬁ
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be WEAESBRE B IREEFESRE
required to pay, i.e. if the lenders were to invoke their BEEEH) ZEFHBAZASAD
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.
2025
—E-HEF
Within More than More than Total
1 year 1 year but 2 years but contractual
or on less than less than undiscounted Carrying
demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
R—FR ZR-F8 SRWE BHRIE
RRER SPRME BHYREF RERELE BREE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Trade and other payables % 5 [ H 1t J& 4 B 3% 28,148 - - 28,148 28,148
Bank loans RITEE 134,939 - - 134,939 134,320
Lease liabilities HEEE 17,764 14,826 - 32,590 31,170
180,851 14,826 - 195,677 193,638

HEH72024/2025
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W FSERRBAE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(i)

(ifi)

29. MFEREIR (F)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) MIFERMEBERE(4)
Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) IEBEZREE (&)
2024
—T-MmEF
Within More than More than Total
1 year 1 year but 2 years but contractual
or on less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
R—FN LZR—4E EANGES BHARIR
FREK DR E EBLREFE BHeRehE REAE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
75T FET FET FET FET
Trade and other payables & 5 [ H i B BR 3K 26,197 - - 26,197 26,197
Bank loans BITEE 158,840 - - 158,840 158,840
Lease liabilities HEEE 21,418 28,353 - 49,771 46,816
206,455 28,353 - 234,808 231,853
Foreign currency risk (iii) ~ SME [ f
Currency risk arises on financial instruments that are EERERRESE T E AR
denominated in a currency other than the functional ZEEZINEEE NI BEEYIE -
currency of the entity to which they relate.
The Group’s exposure to currency risk is insignificant. KREE 2z EERRKT 28 -
Interest rate risk (iv) FlEE

(iv)

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of the changes in market interest rate.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank loans (Note 25) and fair
value interest rate risk on fixed rate borrowings (Note
24).

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk
to ensure there are no more exposures to significant
interest rate movements and rates are relatively fixed.
The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and the
Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
hedge its debt obligations.
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B 5 ER 2R Bf 51
29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 29, HIEBRSIP (8)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) HHERRBRE(E)
(iv) Interest rate risk (Continued) (iv) FIEE (&)
(i) Interest rate profile (i  FI=#ER
The following table details the interest rate profile THRHAMEAEE 2@ E BN R
of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the HERZFEBR
reporting period:
2025 2024
—BCEf CERoME
Effective Effective
interest rates interest rates
LIRS RS
% HK$°000 % HK$’000
FET FET
Fixed rate borrowings: EEEE:
Lease liabilities HEEE 2.48-6.18 31,170 2.48-6.18 46,816
Variable rate borrowings: FEHEE:
Bank loans RTHE 5.23-5.74 134,320 6.02-6.73 158,840
Total borrowings BEE 165,490 205,656
Fixed rate borrowings as a EERERBREE
percentage of total borrowings 7 B2 18.83% 22.76%
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R #5 ¥R R B 5F

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis

At 31st March 2025, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s
profit before taxation for the year and increase/
decrease accumulated losses by approximately
HK$1,343,000 (2024: HK$1,588,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate bank borrowings.
There is no impact of such changes in interest rate
on other components of consolidated equity for
both years.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the beginning of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for variable rate
interest bearing financial instruments in existence
at that date. The 100 basis points increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date. The
sensitivity analysis included in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st March
2024 has been prepared on the same basis.

Sensitivity analysis on bank balances is not
presented as the management of the Group
considers that the Group’s exposure to interest
rate fluctuation is insignificant.

(b) Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue
as a going concern while maximising the return to owners
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
management reviews the capital structure by considering
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt as it sees fit and appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Capital management (Continued) (b) BHRETI(E)
The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net REBNUEEABER(EAFAGBKRIUNA
debt divided by the total equity. Net debt is calculated as AR ETEECER - B FRHETESR
bank loans and loans from a director less bank deposits with RITEEREFERRIHAB=EAZR
maturity over three months, structured deposit and cash and TEF SEEUEEFANR S LESSEDN
cash equivalents as shown in the consolidated statement FEMBIKRKRATR - BEREEMEER
of financial position. Total equity comprises all components o AEBEERBE—(EAENEER
of equity. The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at BHEKE - REHRAR s EEAEBL RN
a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the end of the T
reporting period were as follows:
2025 2024
—E-RE —ZE-FE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank loans (Note 25) RITEE (Hit25) 134,320 158,840
Lease liabilities (Note 24) HE & & (Hatz4) 31,170 46,816
165,490 205,656
Less: Total cash and bank balances R - Be RIRTTESRBTE
(Note 21) (H1a21) (179,306) (164,940)
Net (cash) debt (Re)ERKFHE (13,816) 40,716
Total equity U o 441,968 444,517
Gearing ratio BEABHE N/ATE A 9.16%
(c) Equity price risk (C) BEEERER
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading AEEEERSRE FHEABSEFEL YR
. . D . . ) O 7= Pz =
of listed securities classified as trading securities in the = (@A (R A B ISR £ g DI A
consolidated statement of financial position. The sensitivity EEEE) o BRI D AT AR B R Y IR
A — F e a
analysis has been determined based on the exposure to = @R EARTIR T
equity price risk. -
At 31st March 2025, if the quoted market prices of the R-—E—FE—HA—+—0 HBEEZE%
trading securities had been 20% higher or lower while all ‘ﬁ%iﬁ@tﬂE}T%ZO%ﬁﬁH@%%@%i&
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit before R T$;‘%Z%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁé;ﬁdﬁ%’i R A
T R S gk )8
taxation would increase or decrease by approximately 493 0003 5T (— = — PU4F : 3,000i55T) °
O, ); — = © 9, /
HK$3,000 (2024: HK$3,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Fair value measurements
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

The Group has a team headed by the finance manager
performing valuations for the financial instruments, which
are categorised into Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy, and trading securities which are categorised into
Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. The team reports directly
to the finance director and the audit committee. A valuation
report with analysis of changes in fair value measurement is
prepared by the team at each interim and annual reporting
date, and is reviewed and approved by the finance director.
Discussion of the valuation process and results with the
finance director and the audit committee is held twice a year,
to coincide with the reporting dates.

2025
“E-Lf

29. MFEREIR (F)

(d)

Fair value measurements categorised into fair value hierarchy

AftiEHE
Ak ERM

TERENAEESMTI A ARE  ZFLT
AR MEMRIREEEREESE YRR
EREVIERESERNFE13 - AR EAERR
EZ—EBHRZARERE BARETE
DRZEBRTIZEANTHETERBBAR
Iz ABRE R B MEE

s F—HMHE: AAREFMERERE -
FBE - MNAERBEBEERNEER
BENERMIS 2 REHBERE -

s FAMRAE: AREEERE AR
B EABEEEREENE R R
WAREBERTABRZ B - TA]
BRZBERETSHREBEL TERZ
Bz

e FZAMKE: AAEFEEAEART
AR R

RAAERREIRE _ALRE=LENER
TAURAREERBRO AFE-—BNEERR
e ARERABYBEEAREZE
B EETTRE - ZEREE R FAEEN
ERZEGWMS - BFNRRMEZREA
B ZEGEREAMEAREFEES ST
BV EERE - Wh B EEE R MALE - B
BRENEZZESUHENEBENERE
FRETMART W BHEREAH 2

2024
—EoME
Fair value measurements categorised into fair value hierarchy

BEAREBRIBZAAEHE BARERROBZAAENE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
% et E=R Bst £-1R R E= @it
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FEn FEn FEx FET FAT FAT FAT
Recurring fair value ~ £E#ARE
measurements iE
Assets &E
Unlisted equity BRARETA
instruments at fair HEth2EhE
value through other & Al
comprehensive BEIH
income - - 3,025 3,025 - - 3,043 3,043
Financial assets at fair &A% BT A
value through profitor %7
loss SREE o 7,498 = 7,498 - 7,487 - 7,487
Trading securities EHEE 15 - - 15 16 - - 16
Total ek 15 7,498 3,025 10,538 16 7,487 3,043 10,546
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Fair value measurements (Continued) d) 2QARiast= (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RNAEZEE (B)
During the years ended 31st March 2025 and 2024, there REE_ZE-_AFER-_FT-_NF=-A=+—
were no transfers between in Level 1 and Level 2, or AIEFESHE WEE-RARE_R2HEH
transfers into or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The Y JEAREEARBEREEE=-f K
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair SEB 2 BER RN RE AR B - #RAQ
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which RERBH BHERS -
they occur.
()  Valuation technique and inputs used in Level 1 fair () FB—HRALBEFEPEAOMGERM
value measurement Rig N 808
The fair value of trading securities is based on closing RHBHOARNBEANERT SR RE
bid price quoted in an active market at the end of the HARTHMBREMZZRAZIBTE A
reporting period without any deduction for transaction BARALE-
costs.
(i) Valuation technique and inputs used in Level 2 fair (i) F-WAREFEHFEAOGEERMN
value measurement PEWN ¢
The fair value of financial assets at fair value through WAAREFEBEZESHFTAERNS
profit or loss is determined by reference to the bid price MEENAABEBLEE_FmETN
quoted in the second-hand market at the end of the BREMKXZEEANEABREN RS
reporting period without any deduction for transaction HARTINBREMRZ B AR 2T 5 HRE
costs. M E °
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement (i) BEAFE="HAABEHEZENR
Relationship of
Significant unobservable
Valuation unobservable input for
technique input Rate fair value
BERRABE DABFAEE
fhER Z Y& ke BAZBECBE
Unlisted equity instruments at fair value Discounted Discount rate 11% The higher the
through other comprehensive income cash flow (2024: 16%)  discount rate, the
lower the fair value
BAREFAREMEARGE 2 ELETESTE FRACRE BRIR = 1% MBREmS -
(ZTZmF 1 16%) DR ERE
The fair value of unlisted equity instruments at fair value BAnBE ANEMmE2EN &G 2 3F EmEs
through other comprehensive income is determined using TAN2AREXRBIFRR NS HERMN
discounted cash flow valuation techniques. The significant EE AfRBEFERERANERTAEHA
unobservable input used in the fair value measurement is ZHEBERURE AREFERMEXRZEES
the discount rate. The fair value measurement is negatively HE - RN_TE_AF=A=+—8 EMBE
correlated to the discount rate. As at 31st March 2025, HtnZER[FIAENBERT - MREFGRD
it is estimated that with all other variables held constant, SEM%  REBERAR BT AEMER
a decrease/increase in discount rate by 1% would have Wz EmES T A BEM R
increased/decreased the Group’s unlisted equity instruments 42,0008 7T (ZZ = U4 : 35,0004 T) °
at fair value through other comprehensive income by
HK$42,000 (2024: HK$35,000).
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(d) Fair value measurements (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of financial

o 55 @ bR E 12 (£])
(d) 2AnEHE(E

BEZRARBEFEZERIAZHE

instruments
2025 2024
—E-RF —EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Balance at beginning of the year NG 3 3,043 3,054
Translation differences BE = (18) (11)
Balance at the end of the year RERZE 3,025 3,043

Any gain or loss arising from the remeasurement of the
Group’s unlisted equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income is recognised in the investment
revaluation reserve (non-recycling) in other comprehensive
income. Upon disposal of the equity securities, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is transferred
directly to retained earnings.

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost such as bank deposit with
maturity over three months, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and
bank and other borrowings are not materially different from
their fair values as at 31st March 2025 and 2024 because
of the immediate or short term maturity of these financial
instruments.

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

The Group had the following transactions with its related parties
during the year and balances with them at the end of the year:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and
certain of highest paid individuals as disclosed in Note 10, is

AEERAR B ARMEE KRS ZIELT
e T AMEEMNEMERIEE  EEM
EEWERREEGHE (TA3E) P g
R HERAZSE - Hb2mis Rt
HERBREREEM -

AEEZ 8T A2 REETIZ R A S i
BOASARR - 2 I BE = 8 A Z RIT
ReMRLETEY > BESMEMERER
%’%&E@FHEE AR BITREMEE -

HAAER-_Z-_RAFR-_T_MFE=A
:+ A ESATAE HEZESRTA
BORS sl A B A 2 8 -

FEATIRARGEH

AEERFREEBEALET IR ENER
HEBALTZEHBRI T

(a) FEEBASHM

REBETZEBASHH  BEXMSTFEAR
RIEERETHRSHAL (MM 10/7HE)
ZERWT

as follows:
2025 2024
—E-HF —TNE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Short-term employee benefits HEEEREA 13,727 10,151
Post-employment benefits RIKEEF 54 54
13,781 10,205

Total remuneration is included in “Employee benefits
expenses (including directors’ emoluments)” (see Note 9(b)).
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (Continued)

(b) Other transactions

R §5 ER R B 5F

30. FABEAXIXRAREGER (])

(b) EHfthR5

2025 2024
—E-AHF —T_mF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
B E FET FET
Leasing of offices and warehouses to HEWRANEREET
two (2024: two) related companies BLEEAEZFREER
ultimately owned by the wife of R 2 R
Mr. Eav Yin and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin (ZZE-F : WE)
EpE/NG] (i) 2,916 3,118
Consultancy fee paid to one SHRERE TG LE
related company ultimately ZIREEBR
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin B LTSz —
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin 8 E N ) (396) (398)
Notes: M it -

(M)

(ii)

HEH72024/2025

Leasing of offices and warehouses

During the years ended 31st March 2025, the Group leased
an office and warehouse space to two (2024: two) related
companies ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and
controlled by Mr. Eav Yin.

As at 31st March 2025, commitments under operating leases
receivable from the companies over which ultimately owned by
the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin were as
follows:

() HERLERRE

REBEE-_ZTZ-_HAF=-A=Z+—HILLFEH
M AEERERAZTREERLTIBCL
S EFHERBARGLCAEEROMRE(Z
T PO - ) BERA] e

RZZ-RAE=ZA=+—H RELEHEE
A AR (BB REEFHREER AL
CRERH 2 2R RRNARMT

2025 2024

—E-RF “E-mFE

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Not later than one year R—FR 2,787 1,985
Later than one year and s —FE R T HBRE

not later than five year 2,940 3,166

5,727 5,151

Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from
1.83 to 2.42 years (2024: 0.25 to 2.83 years) and related
commitments are included in Note 34.

Ms. Lam Kim Phung, wife of Mr. Eav Yin, is the administrator/
executor of the estate of Mr. Eav Yin.

MERE 2 EHEEHR N T1.83F £2.42F
T PO ¢ 0.25%F £2.839F ) KA A
A M FE34 -

(i) BEREZEFMEBRLLRBICEEZE
EEBAEBAITA
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R #5 ¥R R B 5F

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (Continued)

(c) Balances with related parties

30. FABEAXIXRARGER (])

(c) FAIEBALLGER

2025 2024
—EZHF —ZTE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade and other receivables due from JEWG L REET
two (2024: four) related companies BB RGCEEESZ
ultimately owned by the ME(ZZ =M : M)
wife of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled BENRIE S MEMIEER
by Mr. Eav Yin 3,987 4,826
Trade and other payables due to BRBCEEZE TRIEESR
two (2024: one) related companies RAGIC R EE S 2
ultimately owned by the FAENFE S REMIRR
wife of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled —EE - —H)
by Mr. Eav Yin 433 431
31. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 31. iR
The assets pledged for certain banking facilities of the Group were REBETHRITEERFEENT :
as follows:
2025 2024
—E-HF —T-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Investment properties BB 288,509 316,497
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32. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 32. A EiRliligihlzt 2 {H=H
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme AREBAMABEEAABIRE LRI —HBH R
for all Hong Kong eligible employees. The assets of the MPF Be ([aEe])itd - ZBEest8 v EEEK
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds SBEESDHFE  BXTEAUESHTAEE -
under the control of trustees.
The retirement benefit cost for MPF scheme charged to the HER BB KR T HBRERIE S 58 R K& FI K
consolidated statement of profit or loss represents contributions N e R AR EEIRRES 2R AETIES H K
payable to the MPF scheme by the Group at rates specified in the RENBEE T2 AHER -
rules of the MPF scheme.
Employees employed in the PRC are members of the state- EPEREZEIERKETZEKREIKE -
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government. ZENKRSHEHPERNEE - AEEAKET
The Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of their Fezim TG - RERFFEWELHER - AEE
payroll to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only EZBRRGE R 2 ET  EARFEZBERED
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension scheme is to K o
make the required contribution under the scheme.
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately, there is no forfeited T2l 2 HZAEREE  WELSWHK AR AEER
contributions that may be used by the Group to reduce the RARBAIRIR B HRAIKF -
existing level of contribution.
33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. BRI
Signification capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the RBEHRDITHNERERABENENERH
reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows: SEFIAT -
2025 2024
—E-hF —E_mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Contracted for: 2ET49 ¢
Construction work for properties MEZEETR 3,681 6,900
34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34. [KETHERIE
The Group as lessor REBEREMAA
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: BRAEE Y BUCRAEIRAE R HEII T
2025 2024
—E-AF —T M
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Not later than one year THiB—F 9,997 8,306
Later than one year and not MR —F R TR FE
later than five years 4,564 10,225
14,561 18,531
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R BfI 5T

35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH 35. LR GSEME
FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities AREEIaEENaEZEHER

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in

TERFANAEEARETHELNBHEZE

BREREMFRSEY FARETDEENEE
DREREBECKIARRSREL T EAREE LS
SHRERERANBRREABRETH ZRERE

the Group’s consolidated statements of cash flows as cash flows ZBE-
from financing activities.
Interest
payable
Bank for Lease
loans bank loans liabilities Total
SR IT
IRITEE BEFR HEAE et
(Note 25) (Note 24)
(Ha#25) (Hia+24)
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
At 1st April 2023 R-ZEZ=1A—H 174,360 138 55,207 229,705
Changes in financing cash flow: fGi&#H & &) -
Proceeds from new bank loan $R1T %ﬂﬁgﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁi 65,000 - - 65,000
Repayment of bank loans BERITEE (80,520) - - (80,520)
New leases entered HEIHE A - - 15,475 15,475
Interest paid 2 FE - (8,288) - (8,288)
Capital element of lease Eﬁﬁ“ﬂfﬁﬁZﬁZ’iﬁ‘E/
liabilities paid - - 21,221) 21,221)
Interest element of lease ENAEEE TS
liabilities paid S - (2,318) (2,318)
Non-cash changes: B & #E)
Exchange differences EH =5 - - (2,645) (2,645)
Interest expenses FEFAX - 8,260 2,318 10,578
At 31st March 2024 R=-ZF-_W&E=A=+—H 158,840 110 46,816 205,766
At 1st April 2024 R-ZE-_MFEMB—H 158,840 110 46,816 205,766
Changes in financing cash flow: #& 3 £ 7 E85) :
Proceeds from new bank loan $R{TH £ & BRI\ 56,000 - - 56,000
Repayment of bank loans HEBITHEE (80,520) - - (80,520)
New leases entered FETHEY - - 5,809 5,809
Interest paid 2R E - (7,222) - (7,222)
Capital element of lease ENHEEE2ELRT D
liabilities paid - - (20,714) (20,714)
Interest element of lease ENHEaE2AERD
liabilities paid - - (1,923) (1,923)
Non-cash changes: HELEE
Exchange differences EREH - - (306) (306)
Adjustment from lease HEBTAR
modification - - (435) (435)
Interest expenses FEEX - 7,179 1,923 9,102
At 31st March 2025 R-E-_HF=A=+—H 134,320 67 31,170 165,557
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36.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH 2025

Up to the date of approval for issue of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new
and amendments to HKFRS which are not yet effective for the
year ended 31st March 2025 and which have not been adopted in
these consolidated financial statements, as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments?

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent
Electricity?

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards 2024

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 72

HKFRS 18 and consequential Presentation and Disclosure in Financial

amendments to other Statements®
HKFRSs
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability:

Disclosures®
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2025

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2026

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2027

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors anticipate that the application of other new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HEH72024/2025

36.
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B@E_S_AFSA=+-BILFEERGEK
2 8T R S 0 S R B ST R T A
E
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=+ —HIEFERAER B KRGS B BR
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FR G ERIE215%
ZAERT AR
FEMBMELERE
95k M BB M 15 3R
HERIBTHR 2 &
FIAR
BRUIBIMELERNE
95k & /B B 15 3R
HEREBETR &
FIAR
—T-NFERBMB
s A E s ER

G

R Z AT R

ES
2

SRTADBRFE 21
FIA2

R ARH AR RN E
t& 42

AP EHREERIE1H
BB RE ERET
5% BEM GRS LR
FO5E - BB BHRELE
AIZE105E R BB ST 2
BIZE 755 2 (& F] A2

FEMBIMELERNE B MEROTIR LR

185% R E BB
BIELEARER
AT
BEVBIMELANE FRORZTAEMBER
1957 A WEe
FREMBIMELNE KREFEERHEB2AFHEA
105 RE BT E LRORCHAZEEHRS
A28k 2 BRI A FEE?

! RZZB-RF—HA— Bz &RAKRNFERRER
2 RZZBZRF— B B2 RRBNFERRER
3 RZF_+LF- A B2 BARBNFERRER
4 A1 E R His 2 1% 5 46 69 F [Z B R AR 3

BT XORET R IERI BB B ME TR E I - &
=TRMERE MR REER] EE MBS LR
RARRKE TG LM BIRBNEATE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

36. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRS 3. E_S_hF-A=+—BLLFECHEMHBK

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31ST MARCH 2025 (Continued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements and consequential amendments to other HKFRSs

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
(“HKAS 17). It carries forward many requirements from HKAS 1
unchanged. HKFRS 18 brings major changes to the statement of
profit or loss and notes to the financial statements as follows:

HKFRS 18 requires an entity:

(a) to classify income and expenses into operating, investing
and financing categories in the statement of profit or loss,
plus income taxes and discontinued operations.

(b) to present two new defined subtotals, namely, operating
profit or loss and profit or loss before financing and income
taxes.

(c) it requires an entity to disclose management-defined
performance measures (“MPM”) and reconciliations between
MPM and subtotals listed in HKFRS 18 or totals or subtotals
required by HKFRSs.

(d) it sets out requirements to help an entity determine whether
information about items should be in the primary financial
statements or in the notes and provides principles for
determining the level of detail needed for the information.

HKFRS 18 also set out classification requirements for foreign
exchange differences, the gain or loss on the net monetary
position, and gains and losses on derivatives and designated
hedging instruments.

In addition, some paragraphs in HKAS 1 have been moved to
HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements and HKFRS
7. Minor amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and
HKAS 33 Earnings per Share are also made.

HKFRS 18 and consequential amendments to other HKFRSs are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2027, with early application permitted. The application
of the new standard is expected to affect the presentation of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and disclosures in
the future consolidated financial statements. The Group is in the
process of assessing the detailed impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

DhFFEEE
For the year ended 31st March 2025 #HZE—ZT-_RAF=A=+—HILFE
RESULTS E 4
Year ended 31st March
BE=A=+—-HLEFE
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
- %= T =F ZEZ-NF ZB-EHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FAET FHET FET FET
Revenue A 1,164,981 784,815 710,586 705,403 709,373
Profit before taxation [ % A1 & A1) 91,469 127,820 87,209 65,094 60,604
Income tax i (35,710) (44,505) (43,555) (38,893) (36,140)
Profit for the year FREHF 55,759 83,315 43,654 26,201 24,464
Equity attributable to FER
owners of the Company RRABIHEAZER 58,542 83,821 43,652 26,202 24,465
Non-controlling interests FEE AR A 2 (2,783) (506) 2 (1) (1)
55,759 83,315 43,654 26,201 24,464
Basic earnings per share BRERZF 7.84¢ U - 11.22¢78 11l 5.84¢E 1 3.51¢78 1 3.27¢E Al
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE
As at 31st March
R=A=+-—8
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
—T-—%F ZT-C —To=F —ER-Ng —B-EHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET FET FET FET
Total assets BmEE 814,730 869,878 820,984 772,605 712,977
Total liabilities FEN=R 405,988 401,406 360,281 328,088 271,009
Net assets BEFRE 408,742 468,472 460,703 444,517 441,968
Equity attributable to BBRARQ
owners of the Company ﬁ/\Z*fgm 413,600 468,477 460,706 444,521 441,973
Non-controlling interests PR M A (4,858) (5) ) (4) (5)
Total equity iR 408,742 468,472 460,703 444 517 441,968
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PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

REBFB2MFR

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Name/Location

LV E

Flat A on 16th Floor, Flat E on

14th Floor, 12th Floor and 13th Floor,

Hong Kong Industrial Building,

444-452 Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong
BB 70444-4525%

BEBELIXKRE

161ZAZE - 1412EZ « 12/ X 1318

Car Parking Space No. 8 on 1st Floor,
Avalon, No. 19 Tai Hang Road, Hong Kong
BB RILE199

P2y

11E85R1F B (L

Part of CH-2304
La-Chaux-de-Fonds, Switzerland
i

CH-2304 La-Chaux-de-Fonds & {5

3rd Floor and the Roof thereof,
No. 102 Electric Road,

North Point,

Hong Kong

FEI AERE10255
mEgREHRRE

91 Holland Park
London W11 3RG,
United Kingdom
HE

fmBW11 3RG
91 Holland Park

Flat 5A, 107 Queen’s Gate
London SW7 5AG,

United Kingdom

o

M BSW7 5AG -

107 Queen’s Gate, Flat 5A

*

Saleable area

A EEE

156 | Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

Type
BEE

Industrial
premises

TEWE

Car parking

(EX—E

Factory

Tk

Residential
building

EFEBF

Residential

building

EEBF

Residential
building

Approximate
gross floor area

BHEEERE

2,430 sq.m.*

2,430°F 73 K*

N/A

A iE

1,457 sgq.m.*

1,457 J5 %~

137 sq.m.”

137 75 K*

3,046 sq.ft.

3,046 F 53R

1,710 sq.ft.

1,710 77 IR

Group’s
interest

rEBZES

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

0

1

FE

SHe
i

Lease term

BHY

Long-term
lease

RHHEE

Long-term
lease
REHEE

Freehold

AR

Long-term
lease

RHHEE

Freehold

AR

Long-term
lease

RHHEE

EHARAE
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